
 

 
 

 
Oaklands Road  
Haywards Heath  
West Sussex  
RH16 1SS 

 
Switchboard:  01444 458166 

 
DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1 

www.midsussex.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Working together for a better Mid Sussex 

 
 

4 October 2021 
 

PLEASE NOTE START TIME OF MEETING 
 

New regulations came into effect on 4 April 2020 to allow Councils to hold meetings 
remotely via electronic means. As such, Council and Committee meetings will occur with 
appropriate Councillors participating via a remote video link, and public access via a live 
stream video through the Mid Sussex District Council’s YouTube channel. 
 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
A meeting of LIQUOR LICENSING COMMITTEE will be held via REMOTE VIDEO LINK on 

TUESDAY, 12TH OCTOBER, 2021 at 10.00 am when your attendance is requested. 

 
Yours sincerely, 

KATHRYN HALL 

Chief Executive 

 

A G E N D A 
 

  Pages 

1.   Roll Call and Virtual Meeting Explanation. 
 

 

2.   To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

3.   To receive Declaration of Interests from Members in respect of 
any matter on the Agenda. 
 

 

 The procedure the Licensing Panel will follow in 
considering the application is set out in the Licensing Act 
2003, its attendant Regulations and was agreed by the 
Licensing Committee on 2nd February 2005.  The Licensing 
Panel, in accordance with rule 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005 decide to exclude the public 
from all or part of the hearing where the Licensing Panel 
considers that it is in the public interest to do so. 
 

 

4.   To confirm the Minute of the previous meeting held on 7 
September 2021. 
 

3 - 12 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fchannel%2FUCW9I9y-TZXZs6jOFmOgiPyQ&data=02%7C01%7CLucinda.Joyce%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cff0a525f3ac1490a65a808d7f294066b%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637244589883714469&sdata=xlpzAC8QpPf5T9JSE0HB08wH%2F2KckWDWT20%2FuqJujpo%3D&reserved=0


 
 

5.   Application of a New Premises Licence. 
 

13 - 154 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Human Rights Act Implications 
 

Licensing Act 2003 
 

A licensing authority must carry out its function under the Licensing Act 2003 with a view of 
promoting the licensing objectives. 

 
The Licensing objectives are:- 

 
(a) the prevention of crime and disorder; 

 
(b) public safety; 

 
(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and 

 
(d) the protection of children from harm. 

 
In carrying out its licensing functions a licensing authority must also have regard to:- 

 
(a) its licensing statement published under Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 (this may be 

viewed on the Mid Sussex District Council website); 

 
and 

 
(b) any guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 

(this may be viewed on the Department for Culture, Media and Sport website). 

 
Members are asked to consider the human rights implications for both the licensee who has 
rights under Article 1 of the First Protocol, the Right to Property (which includes the licence):and the 
objectors who have rights under Article 8 to Respect for Private and Family Life, and Article 1 of 
the First Protocol, their right to enjoy peaceful use of their possessions. 
 
 
 
To: Members of Liquor Licensing Committee: Councillors J Dabell, J Henwood and 

S Smith 
 

 
 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021



 
 

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Mid Sussex District Council Liquor Licensing 
Committee 

held on Tuesday, 7th September, 2021 
from 10.00 am - 12.00 pm 

 
Present: Councillors: N Webster (Chairman) 

G Allen 
S Smith 
 

 
Officers in attendance: Fiona Spears, Environmental Health Enforcement Officer 

Michael Bateman, Team Leader for Environmental Health 
Nick Bennett, Senior Environmental Health Officer 
Alison Hammond, Democratic Services Officer 
 

 
Also in attendance: Mr Mevlit, Applicant 

Mr A Mevlit,(DPS for Applicant) 
Miss Mevlit 
Mr Berry, Agent for the Applicant 
 

 

LS.1 ROLL CALL AND VIRTUAL MEETING EXPLANATION.  
 
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and introduced each member of 
the Panel to the participants.   
  
Franca Currall, Solicitor explained the virtual meeting procedure.  She advised that 
no decision will be given at the end of this meeting.  The decision will be made within 
5 working days of the meeting. A letter will be sent to all the participants and any 
other parties who made written representations but did not attend the meeting. The 
letter will set out the Members decision with reasons for it and will also contain details 
of how to make an appeal against that decision. 
 

LS.2 TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  
 
None. 
 

LS.3 TO RECEIVE DECLARATION OF INTERESTS FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF 
ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA.  
 
None. 
 

LS.4 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 9 APRIL 
2021.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 9 April 2021 were agreed as a correct record and 

were electronically signed by the Chairman. 

 

LS.5 APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE.  
 
Introduction and outline of the report 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 3

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 
 

Fiona Spears, Environmental Health Enforcement Officer introduced the report. An 
application has been made by The Carriage of Crawley Down.  Representations 
were received from the Environmental Health Team, a Responsible Authority and 
three residents objecting to the application on the grounds of public nuisance.  The 
Committee were asked to determine the application in accordance with the Licensing 
Act 2003, MSDC Licensing Policy and the Home Office Guidance issued under 
Section 182 Licensing Act 2003, whilst having due regard to the applicant’s 
submissions and relevant representations.  The Carriage, currently trading in 
Crawley Down took possession of an   adjacent property with an outside forecourt.  
The new premises licence sought to extend the current licensing hours on Fridays, 
Saturdays and Bank Holidays, and the application was advertised on the premises 
and in the East Grinstead Courier.  
 
The Committee were advised that a number of complaints were received by the 
Planning and Environmental Protection Teams; the complaints about odour were not 
relevant to this application. A number of complaints regarding excessive noise 
complaints had been received and dealt with.  A complaint that the premises had 
been open longer than permitted was due to a misunderstanding by staff and had 
been resolved.  It was highlighted that the Police had initially raised representations, 
but these have been satisfied by the agreed conditions.  
 
The Officer highlighted that some information contained in the representations was 
irrelevant, namely issues of car parking and people driving to The Carriage.  She 
summarised that the main points for objection were that of public nuisance, times of 
use of the outside forecourt area and excessive noise.  A number of conditions, if the 
licence was approved were listed in appendix 8. 
 
Questions from the Members to the Officer: 
 
Following a question from the Chairman, the Solicitor confirmed that the panel should 
disregard any comments on issues of odour and parking as they are not relevant to 
the application. People driving to the premises is also not relevant. 
 
As there were no further questions from the panel, the Chairman invited the Senior 
Environmental Health Officer to make his representation. 
 
Interested Party - Representation by Nick Bennett 
 
Nick Bennett, Senior Environmental Health Officer noted that that the Environmental 
Protection Team are a statutory consultee for premises licence applications, and they 
have great expertise in issues on noise and nuisance.  The Team objected on the 
hours the outside terrace would be used, everything else has been agreed.  He 
highlighted the need to achieve a balance with the residential and business 
premises.  There may be some disturbance if licensed premises are close to 
residential properties and businesses must make compromises, as supported by 
case law.  He noted the location of The Carriage in the centre of the village, 5 flats 
above the parade of business premises, other residential properties within 15 to 20 
metres and the table chairs to front of the premises and in Old Station Close.  A 
Pavement Licence has been granted for the tables and chairs to the side of the 
premises, the front patio area is private property and therefore does not require a 
licence, under current Covid Legislation and complaints have been received for loud 
music, loud talking, shouting, laughing, and the behaviour of customers under the 
influence of alcohol.  The use of the outside area would be dependent on the weather 
and voices from the premises were clearly audible on recent recordings made inside 
nearby residential premises. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 4



 
 

 
 

 
The Officer highlighted that the Royal Oak pub, which closed in 2015 had a narrow 
strip of grass with 3 tables of 4 seats, only 2 complaints were received about live 
music and non on noise from the pub’s customers. The businesses are different, the 
application for The Carriage had 9 tables on the terrace, the increased number of 
people will create more noise.  The Lombard effect is a recognised phenomenon 
where the volume of speakers involuntarily increases to be heard over background 
noise, this has a knock-on effect.  The new business is a new source of noise and 
existing residents have no choice.  He noted the measures that could be included in 
the Applicant’s noise management plan, closing windows / doors, and supervision 
but advised they would not be effective.  Door supervisors cannot stop the noise of 
people socialising and interreacting normally. The noise can be controlled though 
controlling the licensing hours.  With the long opening hours and quiet background 
noise in the evenings the residents will hear the noise every day and it will affect 
them in the evenings.  He highlighted that some premises in the local towns have 
restrictions which prevent the use of outside space after 9 or 10 pm.  
 
In response to a question from the Chairman the Officer advised that he was not 

aware if the Lombard effect has been validated in law, but it is a recognised 

phenomenon and is   widely accepted.   

The Chairman noted the adverse impact on the economy of the village due to the 

closure of the Royal Oak, the campaign to reopen the pub and another restaurant 

located on a residential street in the village.   

The Solicitor advised the panel that the application should be considered on its 

merits, using the information proved by the applicant and the written representations 

and issues discussed at the meeting.  The economic development of the village is 

irrelevant, and the panel should only consider the licensing objectives in making their 

decision.  The panel should also refer to the Council’s policies and section 182 

guidance. They must give reasons for their decision, confirm conditions already 

agreed with the applicant and may add new conditions for the application they 

consider necessary for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives.  

Following a question from a Member the Officer confirmed the hours the applicant 

had submitted on the new premises licence application.  

The Agent for the Applicant addressed the Committee:      
 
Mr Berry, Agent advised that Mr Mevlit’s father has operated a coffee shop at East 

Grinstead’s Railway Station for many years, recently rebranded as The Carriage.  

The business in Crawley Down started in 2020 with additional building works later the 

same year to provide external seating.  This area has been permitted under current 

Covid legislation.  The business had adapted to survive delivering takeaway meals 

and needs to develop a revised model to survive post Covid.  The model is a family 

friendly café and restaurant.  The meals are current prepared in the kitchen at no. 6.  

He confirmed there would be no further screening of live football games but there 

would be occasional live music.  The neighbours would be advised but it would not 

disturb them.   He highlighted that a planning application has been submitted for no. 

12 and the applicant has not accepted the condition to close external seating at 

21.30. 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 5



 
 

 
 

The clearing of the external seating area would be detailed in the noise management 

plan and would operate in a manner sensitive to the neighbours.  He suggested that 

out-door seating will be a feature of towns and villages for some time as many people 

feel safer and want to sit outside, recent government guidance permits this.  He 

acknowledged some complaints had been received and hoped the number would 

reduce.  The applicant is aware of operating a commercial business in the heart of 

residential area in a quiet village.  The business has been well received by many 

people in the village. There is a need for a night-time venue since the closure of the 

Royal Oak.   He asked panel to grant the licence for the outside area as per the 

application. 

Questions to the Agent and Applicant: 
 

The Chairman noted that pavement trading areas permitted under Covid legislation 
would be withdrawn in September 2022 and asked how the business would continue 
to operate, he also raised questions about the noise of doors slamming. The Agent 
confirmed the new investment in a kitchen at no. 6 which would be the principal 
kitchen, the continued use of the old kitchen at no. 12 was yet to be decided. Soft 
door closures could be fitted to reduce noise and could be added to the noise 
management plan.  The Applicant confirmed the soft closures had already been 
fitted.  He also advised the business employs local people, 13 staff part time and 
fulltime which includes family members. 
 
The Chairman confirmed he had visited the premises in May, and he had received 

calls supporting the application.  It is popular during the daytime, but the panel must 

make a balanced decision.  In response to a further question the Agent confirmed 

that a planning application has been submitted to make changes to existing extractor 

system at no. 6 to reduce odour and more evidence is to be supplied to 

Environmental Health.   

A Member asked if the business was a café, restaurant or bar.  The Applicant 

advised the business adapted to survive during the lockdowns of the pandemic.  

When certain activities were not possible, due to odours they changed to serving 

coffee and cake.  They have adapted to meet the local need, they cater for breakfast, 

lunch and à la carte in the evening.  He confirmed no. 6 and 12 are not connected 

and they access each via back doors.  

The Agent confirmed the intention was for the external area to be for seated 

customers only, no standing would be permitted. The Solicitor highlighted that 

condition 3 from the Environmental Protection Team stated that only seated 

customers would be permitted outside.  The Solicitor, in response to the Chairman’s 

comment that he had been contacted by residents about the premises, commented 

that it was not unusual in their role as a councillor for people to make contact with 

them; all councillors attend meetings with an open mind and do not pre-determine the 

outcome of any applications. 

The Chairman confirmed all Members had come to the meeting with an open mind.  

The application required careful consideration, the panel must consider the impact on 

neighbouring residents, and must not consider the impact on parking for local 

residents.  

Following a question from a Member the Applicant confirmed they currently use 

aluminium tables and chairs, it takes 20 – 30 minutes to clear them away and remove 

any litter.  They are looking at solutions to remove the need to move the tables and 

chairs at the end of each evening.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 6



 
 

 
 

The Senior Environmental Health Officer confirmed the Environment Protection 

Team did not seek to prevent the use of the terrace but would prefer an earlier finish 

time.  Noise Management Plans are not very useful at preventing noise from people 

laughing and talking.  Their purpose is to uphold the objective of preventing a public 

nuisance.  He queried an email sent by the Applicant and asked if they would be 

reliant on external seating.  The Applicant confirmed the external seating was 

essential as the 24 seats inside no. 6 would not cover their costs and staff.  He 

reiterated that the front terrace no longer has standing permitted, there had been one 

incident during the Euros.   

Members queried the average time for customers to eat a two or three course meal, 

security and if the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) would be on site the whole 

time the business is open.  The Applicant advised the average time to eat a meal is 

approximately 1 hour 45 minutes, customers seated at 8 pm should finish by 10 pm.  

They are looking at solutions to resolve the recent vandalism and to store the 

furniture securely outside; this would save time and prevent noise.  Aidan Mevlit 

confirmed he is the DPS and would be on the premises most of the time, there would 

be a list of people who would also supervise.  

Interested Party - Representation by Mrs Williams 

The Solicitor read out a further email received from Mrs Williams as she was unable 

to attend the meeting due to work commitments.  She noted there had been a further 

incident on Friday 3 September where she observed people standing on pavements 

and roads linked to the premises and at 23.00 there had been loud shouting from the 

premises.  

Further Questions to the Agent and Applicant: 
 
Members asked if the Applicant have security on site, a door person, log-book to 
record incidents or CCTV.  The Applicant advised they have a security firm who 
provide door staff when it is required, normally at the weekends there is always 
security present to control customers and noise and they do have CCTV.   
 
In response to questions from the Chairman the Environmental Health Enforcement 
Officer confirmed the DPS must train other staff to transfer their responsibility for 
when they are not on site.  She stated SIA door supervisors are required and if the 
License holder identifies they are deemed necessary, a risk assessment is required 
for events. One SIA is required per 100 people (or part of) at all times with a 
minimum of two SIA. Depending on the type of premises and event, the use of hi viz 
and clickers may be required to monitor access to the premises.  
  
The Solicitor suggested the Applicant circulates details of a contact at the premises 
for residents to complain to when there is a noise.  This could be added as a 
condition if the application is approved.  The applicant could also use a WhatsApp 
group or social media to alert neighbours of up-coming events. 
 
Miss Mevlit advised they didn’t know the type of clientele when they first opened, so 

they had door staff.  They are not now as busy, so door staff are no longer required, 

the clients are mostly families and they have security for busier evenings.  Mr Mevlit 

confirmed the company provide a 24/7 response on days security are not already on 

site.  

The Chairman confirmed the Members and Officers had no further comments or 

questions. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 7



 
 

 
 

Summing up by Agent:  

The Agent advised a balance approach was needed and they did not agree with the 

proposed times suggested by the Environmental Protection Team.  A finishing time of 

22.00 with 30 minutes to clear away strikes the right balance.  He noted there had 

been some complaints, the business had settled down and has adjusted to keep the 

business going in adverse times. He asked that the Applicant have a chance to run a 

successful business and said there may be times when residents are unsatisfied.  

The business is now part of village life, it needs the additional external seating to be 

profitable and currently people want to sit outside.  The Applicant is seeking the 

decking on permanent basis through a planning application. 

The Solicitor advised the public participants that the panel would retire to a private 

virtual room to deliberate and make a decision today.  If the decision took longer they 

would be advised.  To meet legislation the applicant would receive the decision and 

any reasons within five working days and copies would be sent to all interested 

parties.  Interested Parties would have 21 days to appeal to Brighton Magistrates 

Court from receipt of the letter. 

The Chairman thanked the officers and public participants to the meeting. 

 

As there were no further questions the public meeting  
finished at 11.26 am so that the Committee could deliberate. 

 

The revised conditions were agreed by the Committee in the closed session.  

 
RESOLVED 

The application for a Premises Licence be approved, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

1. Digital CCTV and appropriate recording equipment to be installed in accordance with 

Home Office Guidelines relating to UK Police Requirements for Digital CCTV System 

(PSDB Publication Number 09/05), operated and maintained throughout the 

premises internally and externally to cover all public areas including the entrance to 

the premises and the licensed area/outside patio tables and chairs area. The system 

shall be on and recording at all times the premises licence is in operation. 

The CCTV cameras and recording equipment must be of sufficient quality to work in 

all lighting levels inside and outside the premises at all times.  

CCTV footage will be stored for a minimum of 31 days. 

The management will give full and immediate cooperation and technical assistance 

to the Police in the event that CCTV footage is required for the prevention and 

detection of suspected or alleged crime.  

The CCTV images will record and display dates and times, and these times will be 

checked regularly to ensure their accuracy.  

Subject to GDPR guidance and legislation, the management of the premises will 

ensure that key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV, and will be able to 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 8



 
 

 
 

download selected footage onto a disk (or other electronic portable device 

acceptable to Sussex Police) for the police without difficulty or delay and without 

charge to Sussex Police.    

Any breakdown or system failure will be notified to the police immediately & remedied 

as soon as practicable. 

In the event of the CCTV system hard drive being seized as evidence as part of a 

criminal investigation by Sussex Police or for any other reason, the premises will be 

expected to install a replacement hard drive or a temporary replacement drive as 

soon as practicable. 

2. An incident log will be maintained by the premises showing a detailed note of 

incidents that occur in the premises and any refusals of alcohol. The incident log will 

be inspected and signed off by the DPS (or a person with delegated authority) at 

least once a month. The logbook should be kept on the premises and be available for 

inspection at all times the premises are open by officers of any responsible authority. 

An incident will be defined as being one which involves an allegation of a criminal 

offence. 

3. Patrons will not be permitted to take drinks in open containers to consume outside on 

the pavement/public highway beyond the licensed outside tables and chairs area of 

the premises whilst smoking or otherwise congregating outside of the premises 

beyond the licensed area. 

4. All off sales of alcohol will be made in sealed containers 

5. Security Industry Authority (SIA) door supervisors must be deployed at the premises 

at any time when the licence holder identifies by way of a suitable and sufficient 

written risk assessment that SIA door supervisors and other security measures are 

necessary.  It must also consider busy periods such as Bank Holidays, Christmas 

and New Year, Seasonal Variations and other Town Centre Events along with any 

special events at the premises such as live music, discos, screening of sporting 

events and other similar functions or entertainment.  The risk assessment will also 

cover any requirement for polycarbonate drinking vessels, ticket only events, entry 

restrictions and last entry times. The written risk assessment must be available on 

the premises for inspection by police and authorised officers of the Licensing 

Authority.  This written risk assessment is to be reviewed and updated as necessary 

and at least annually and must take into account information or guidance offered by 

the police and the licensing authority. 

6. Whenever SIA door supervisors are on duty, they must be provided in accordance 

with the following: 

 

 At a ratio of 1 per 100 customers or part thereof, although at all times with a minimum 

of two; 

 On duty until the premises has closed to the public, licensable activities has ceased 

and the venue is completely clear of patrons and all customers have dispersed from 

the immediate area; 

 Must wear clearly marked reflective jacket or tabard in order that they can be readily 

identifiable; 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 9



 
 

 
 

 Must be equipped with clickers or other device(s) in order that they can accurately 

measure and ensure that the maximum capacity of the premises is complied with a 

written record being kept; and 

 Must monitor/supervise any queue of customers waiting to gain access to the 

premises and ensure that so long as social distancing requirements are in place, that 

these are complied with both inside and outside the premises. 

7. SIA door supervisors shall complete incident logs prior to the end of their shift. 

Records shall be maintained at the premises containing the full name, date of birth, 

and SIA badge number of every Door Supervisor. The record shall include all dates 

and times when a Door Supervisor is employed. If Staff are employed through an 

agency the name and address of the agency must be included. The Door Supervisor 

records will be kept at the premises and made immediately available to officers of 

any responsible authority upon request. Those performing the role of door supervisor 

shall not perform any other role when engaged for the purpose of door supervision 

activities. 

8. Door supervisors shall be fully briefed prior to work with clear written instructions 

regarding their specific duties including an awareness of persons banned from the 

premises. These records shall be made available to the local licensing authority 

and/or Sussex Police upon request.  

9. A member of the SIA door staff will monitor the outside smoking area whilst the 

premises licence is in operation, or until the area has been emptied of patrons at 

closing time. All SIA registered door supervisors shall wear and operate body worn 

video cameras with a recording facility. The body worn cameras will be recording all 

the time the door supervisors are on duty.  All recordings shall be stored for a 

minimum period of 31 days, with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall 

be made available upon the request of police, or authorised local authority officers, 

throughout the entire 31 days period. The premises will ensure there are sufficient 

spare batteries fully charged for the body worn cameras so there is no issue with 

cameras not recording due to flat batteries. 

10.  The premises will operate a “Challenge 25” policy whereby any person attempting to 

buy alcohol who appears to be under 25 will be asked for photographic ID to prove 

their age. The recommended forms of ID that will be accepted are passports, driving 

licenses with a photograph, photographic military ID or proof of age cards bearing the 

“PASS” mark hologram 

11. Suitable and sufficient signage advertising the “Challenge 25” policy will be displayed 

in prominent locations in the premises. 

12. The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that all staff members engaged or to be 

engaged, in selling alcohol at the premises shall receive the following induction 

training. This training will take place prior to the selling of such products: 

 The lawful selling of age restricted products  

 Refusing the sale of alcohol to a person who is drunk  

Further verbal reinforcement/refresher training covering the above will be carried out 

thereafter at intervals not to exceed three months, with the date and time of the 

verbal reinforcement/refresher training documented. All such training undertaken by 

staff members shall be fully documented and recorded and signed and dated by both 

the employee and the DPS. All training records shall be kept on the premises and 

made available to officers of any responsible authority upon request 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 10



 
 

 
 

13. Alcohol deliveries will only be made to a residential or business address and not to a 

public place. The age verification policy (including challenge 25) shall clearly be 

advertised at each stage of the order and on all advertising.  All forms of advertising 

and promotional literature detailing the delivery service (including internet sites and 

flyers/leaflets) will clearly state that alcohol should only be purchased for delivery to 

intended recipients (or persons who will accept delivery on behalf of the named 

recipient) who are aged over 18. Customers will be reminded that it is a criminal 

offence for a person under 18 to purchase or attempt to purchase alcohol and that it 

is also an offence to purchase alcohol on behalf of a person aged under 18 

14. At the time the order is placed a declaration will be required from the person placing 

the order that that person is aged over 18 years of age, and that the intended 

recipient is over 18 years of age. This process will be documented, (tick box before 

proceeding, record of verbal acknowledgement or similar). These records must be 

retained for no less than twelve months and produced on request to an officer of a 

Responsible Authority. 

a. For deliveries where the alcohol is delivered by a third party, the alcohol is concealed 

in a secure sealed package, and the DPS has no direct supervision or control over 

the delivery (such as an independent courier or Royal Mail), there cannot be an age 

verification challenge on delivery, but the above conditions will be followed. 

b. For deliveries made directly by the DPS or their employees, staff or agent or persons 

instructed by the DPS/PLH, the person accepting the delivery must be aged 18 years 

or over.  Where the person accepting delivery appears to be under 25, a recognised 

photographic ID must be produced prior to delivery.  No ID, no delivery. 

c. Where the premises contracts a third party to deliver alcohol on their behalf and the 

person collecting the alcohol from the premises delivers it directly to the customer 

within a short timescale (such as Deliveroo, Just Eats), the premises will ensure that 

the third party only employs delivery employees or agents aged 18 or over; is aware 

that alcohol is included in the delivery; that the delivery person actively engages with 

the person receiving delivery and operates a challenge 25 policy rather than just 

handing the delivery over; that in the event that the recipient of the alcohol is 

challenged for ID and does not provide appropriate and valid ID, the delivery person 

will retain the alcohol and return it to the premises. 

15. The outside seating area to The Front Carriage will not be used by customers to 

consume food or drink after 22:00 hours Monday to Sunday. 

 

16 Tables and chairs will only be permitted in the outside area to The Front Carriage in 

accordance with the layout submitted by the applicant. 

 

17 The outside seating area to The Front Carriage will only be used by customers who 

are seated at tables. For the avoidance of doubt, there will be no consumption of 

alcohol by customers who are standing in the outside area. 

 

 

18. The main entrance doors to The Carriage and to The Front Carriage shall remain 

closed after 21:30 hours, except when used for access and egress.  All other external 

windows and doors shall also remain closed after 21:30 hours, except when used in 

the event of an emergency. 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 11



 
 

 
 

19. Display suitable prominent notices close to the exit doors of The Carriage and The 

Front Carriage, and in the outside area to The Front Carriage, requesting patrons to 

have regard to neighbours and to leave the premises quickly and quietly.   

20. No bottling out activities outside of the following hours: 08:00 to 20:00 hrs Monday to 

Saturday; 09:00 to 18:00 Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays. 

21. The Premises shall only operate once a Noise Management Plan (NMP) has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Environmental Protection Team.  The 

NMP shall comprise measures to control noise from music and customers affecting 

nearby residents as well as a complaints management procedure.  Licensable 

activities shall thereafter be carried out at all times in accordance with the approved 

NMP unless any alterations are otherwise first submitted to and approved in writing 

by the Environmental Protection Team. The NMP shall be reviewed after any 

significant changes to operation or after any noise complaints are received. If the 

Environmental Protection Team is satisfied that the NMP is not proving effective this 

approval may be withdrawn by the Local Authority’s Authorised Officer. 

 

22. The details of a mobile telephone number shall be circulated to the properties in the 

following roads; Old Station Close and Grange Road to the junction with Field Drive, 

Crawley Down. The telephone number shall also be place on a sign and displayed on 

a wall on the Premises where patrons can see this sign.  

 

The meeting finished at 12:00 pm. 

 

Chairman 

 
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 12.00 pm 
 

Chairman 
 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 12



APPLICATION OF A NEW PREMISES LICENCE 

REPORT OF: Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services  
Contact Officer: Jon Bryant, Senior Licensing Officer  

Email: jon.bryant@midsussex,gov.uk Tel: 01444 477076 
Wards Affected: High Weald 
Key Decision 
Report To:  

No 
Liquor Licensing Panel  

Purpose of Report 

1 To provide information in order that the Licensing Committee can determine 
an application for a Premises Licence. 

Summary 

2 An application, pursuant to Section 17 Licensing Act 2003, has been made by 
Mr Timothy Earley and Miss Claire Kacy for the grant of a Premises Licence 
at The Fox Eating and Drinking House, Highbrook Lane, West Hoathly, RH19 
4PJ. Two of the Responsible Authorities and the freeholder of the premises 
have submitted representations objecting to the application on the grounds of 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder, the Prevention of Public Nuisance, and the 
promotion of Public Safety. There have additionally been a number of 
representations submitted in support of the application. 

3 It should be noted by the Panel that there is a Premises Licence currently 
issued in respect of the premises. This application is for the issue of an 
additional Premises Licence and is not a consideration of the current licence. 

4 The Committee is asked to determine the application in accordance with the 
Licensing Act 2003, MSDC Licensing Policy and the Home Office Guidance 
issued under Section 182 Licensing Act 2003, whilst having due regard to the 
applicant’s submissions and relevant representations. 

_________________________________________________________________ 

Background 

5 Mr Timothy Earley is the current Leaseholder at the premises. At this time has 
13 years remaining on the lease which is a 20-year lease. 

6 The Freeholder of the property is Mr Paul Lloyd; he is also the Premises 
Licence Holder for the current premises licence. Due to issues between Mr 
Earley and Mr Lloyd, Mr Lloyd resigned as the Designated Premises 
Supervisor (DPS) for the current licence and has not appointed a replacement 
DPS. It is a mandatory condition that no sales of alcohol can take place 
without a nominated DPS. This remains unresolved. 

7 Mr Earley and Miss Kacy are therefore applying for a separate Premises 
Licence in their own names. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 13

Agenda Item 5

mailto:jon.bryant@midsussex,gov.uk


8 The application was correctly advertised at the site between 21st August 2021 
and 17th September 2021 and in the Mid Sussex Times on 2nd September 
2021. 

9 The applicant seeks the following licensable activities and timings; 

Licensable Activity Timings 

Supply of Alcohol – On and Off 
Premises 

Mon - Sat  10:00 - 23:00 
Sun  10:00 - 22:30 

10 The proposed opening hours of the premises will be: 

Mon - Sat 10:00 – 23:20 
Sun 10:00 – 22:50 

11 There have been representations made against this application which have 
been received from two of the responsible authorities, The Licensing 
Authority, and the Environmental Protection Team. The details of these 
representations are appended to the report. 

12 A representation against the application has also been received from Mr 
Lloyd, the Freeholder, and current Premises Licence Holder. 

13 The main points raised in the representations that are relevant relate to the 
licensing objectives of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public 
Nuisance, and the Promotion of Public Safety. 

14 This application has generated a large local interest in West Hoathly and the 
surrounding area. A total of 75 emails were received in support of the 
application. However, all representations, whether opposed or in favour of an 
application must be relevant to the Licensing Objectives. Therefore only 8 of 
these representations have been accepted as being relevant to the Licensing 
Objectives. 

15 The Committee should be aware when reading the representations in favour 
of the application that some of the information contained therein is irrelevant 
for the purposes of the Licensing Act 2003.  

16 The Committee must focus on the relevant parts only and disregard the 
irrelevant matters when determining this matter 

17 The Police have agreed conditions with the applicants in respect of the 
application. 

18 If the Committee decides to grant the licence, I request that a number of
conditions offered in the operating schedule and agreed by the Police be
attached. Full details are attached in the appendices.

19 The applicants have also offered further conditions to reduce any public
nuisance arising from music and these are also included in the appendices.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 14



Representations 

Responsible Authority Representations 

20 Representations have been received from the Licensing Authority and the 
Environmental Protection Team. 

A) The Licensing Authority

Objections to the application have been received under the following grounds: 

• Prevention of crime and disorder

• Public safety

• Prevention of public nuisance

It is detailed that Paul Lloyd has been the Premises Licence Holder at The 
Fox since 19 May 2014, with Timothy Earley named the DPS up to January 
2021. During this time, the Licensing Authority recorded the following 
concerns against the DPS Timothy Earley at the premises. 

• On 3 July 2017, a licence inspection found the following contraventions:
Insufficient training records for staff, no Age Verification Policy, no DPS
Authorisation form, failure to display a summary of the premises licence,
refusal/incident records not being kept, and no Fire Risk Assessment report.

• On 12 November 2018, a local resident complained of late-night noise until
01:00, beyond the licensing hours of 23:00. Timothy Earley admitted a 50th
birthday at the site had continued until this time.

• On 3 July 2019, a local resident complained of loud music from the
establishment until 00:15.

• On 11 October 2019, West Sussex County Council informed the Licensing
Authority that Timothy Earley had pleaded guilty to food safety charges after
serving food containing egg to a customer ordering an egg-free meal. The
pub was also displaying a food hygiene rating of five when they only had a
two rating at the time.

• On 20 January 2020, the Licensing Authority issued a warning letter to
Timothy Earley, following complaints of noise emanating from the premises at
03:20, with the Temporary Event Notice in place finishing at 02:00.

• On 11 August 2020, a complaint was received that the establishment was not
complying with COVID-19 social distancing requirements.

• On 27 May 2021, the Licensing Authority issued a warning to Timothy Earley
following a complaint of a music event held in the area outside of The Fox,
without a Temporary Event Notice to permit the event.

On 11 January 2021, Paul Lloyd removed Timothy Earley as DPS, stating 
that he had no confidence that Timothy Earley was promoting the licensing 
objectives.  

On 10 August 2021, Timothy Earley applied to the Licensing Authority to 
transfer the Premises Licence to himself. The Licensing Authority rejected this 
application as Timothy Earley had not taken any reasonable steps to obtain 
the necessary consent from the current Premises Licence Holder, Paul Lloyd, 
despite him living adjacent to The Fox. Furthermore, having spoken to Paul 
Lloyd, he confirmed he did not consent to the transfer and was unaware of 
the application.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 15



  In conclusion the Licensing Authority had been made aware of repeated poor 
behaviour and insufficient control of activities occurring at The Fox. 
Consequently, on the balance of probability, the Licensing Authority does not 
have confidence that Timothy Earley will uphold the licensing objectives as a 
Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor and therefore 
objects to this application. 

 
The applicants have replied to these particular representations and their 
response is attached to the appendices 

 
 B) Environmental Protection Team 
 
 Objections have been received on the grounds of Public Safety 
 
 They have stated that the applicants have demonstrated that they are not 

able to meet the prevention of public nuisance licensing objective. Over 
recent years there have been many complaints of noise brought to the 
attention of the Environmental Protection Team. In the past two years there 
have been 8 complaints of noise, predominantly loud music, from The Fox, 
even while there have been restrictions on The Fox’s ability to open during 
the Covid pandemic. Visits by officers from the Environmental Protection 
Team have corroborated the noise complaints and the impact that the pub is 
having on the local community. Temporary event notices had been notified for 
3 events at The Fox by Mr Earley on 26th June 2021, 3rd July 2021, and 24th 
July 2021 for music events. Following discussions with the applicant about 
the necessity to control music noise levels to prevent public nuisance, officer 
visits at the first 2 events demonstrated that insufficient control of noise levels 
were having a detrimental impact on nearby residents and it was clear that 
our advice had been disregarded. This was raised with Mr Earley and it was 
emphasised that future TENS would be opposed.  

 
They have stated that the applicant has demonstrated that he has been 
unwilling to manage the activities to prevent local impacts. Back in early 2020, 
after a number of noise complaints had been received by the Environmental 
Protection Team, the Licensing Officer and an Environmental Protection 
Team Officer met with Mr Earley and discussed the complaints. Recordings of 
the noise from the pub that had been experienced by a nearby resident in the 
early hours of the morning were played back to Mr Earley. At the time Mr 
Earley accepted that that the noise level was unreasonable, and it was 
advised that future TENS would only be permitted if he could demonstrate 
that he could manage the activities at the pub in a way that prevented public 
nuisance. Subsequent to this meeting and to Mr Earley’s agreement with this 
position, there have been further complaints of noise.  

 
They have further stated that there have been a number of complainants who 
have indicated that they are scared to give their name and address for fear of 
reprisals and that the number of complainants that have expressed their 
concern is unusual. This has been evidenced by our own department’s 
interaction with Mr Earley. In June 2021 he was rude to one of the support 
team staff and had been confrontational in an email to an officer about 
complaints from residents. As a result, the Team Leader considered it 
necessary at the time to put themself as the point of contact for Mr Earley on 
environmental protection matters to protect the team from being exposed to 
this abuse. The telephone conversations that triggered this action were in 
response to legitimate investigations into public nuisance on account of 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 16



excessive noise. Mr Earley’s response was to counteract these investigations 
by making spurious complaints about noise from church bells, noise from 
people clapping for the NHS each week and noise from tree felling from an 
unknown location.  
 
The applicants have responded to this representation and offered further 
conditions. The response is included in the appendices. 

 
Interested Parties Representations   
 

Mr Paul Lloyd 
 
 Mr Lloyd has made objections on the grounds of the Prevention of Crime and 

Disorder and the Prevention of a Public Nuisance. 
 
 He has detailed that he is the freehold owner of the property, a former 

Inspector of the Hong Kong Police and former PC in the Metropolitan police. 
He states that he has managed and owned public houses for over 30 years 
and is fully aware of the roles and responsibilities of the Licencing Act 2003. 
He is the Premises Licence Holder for the above premises and was the 
former Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) until he stepped down from 
this role 16th August 2021 in part because Ms Kacy was making it difficult for 
him to perform this role. 

 
 He has stated that Mr Earley ignores the drinking up time rules, and as 

recently as 21st July he still had 10 to 12 people drinking in the pub. He has 
supplied a photograph and video to show this. The video is available for the 
panel to view. 

 
 He states that he has been harassed by both of the applicants and previously 

been sent abusive texts by Claire Kacy 
 
 He states that last summer there were complaints of noise and loud music, 

but Ms Kacy did not control the situation. In fact, she told him complaints had 
been made by local residents and when he suggested the musician should 
then be asked to play less loud, she did not see why they should and did not 
understand the problem.  

 
He stated that he had I have witnessed Claire Kacy drunk on the premises 
during trading hours when he spent a night at the pub in 2019 and a band 
was playing. He stated that Mr Earley told him at the time that when she 
starts drinking she cannot stop.    

 
 He stated that he had been resistant to formally objecting to either Mr Earley 

or Ms Kacy being named Premises Licence Holder in order to preserve the 
peace and prevent more threats, intimidation, abuse and anti-social behaviour 
from either of them. In December 2020, Mr Early and I had a confrontation on 
the premises car park after he started filming him on his private property. 

 
Interested Parties - Representations in Support 
 
 As stated, many emails were received in support of this application and the 

representations that were accepted are detailed below: 
 
 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 17



Claire Martin  
 

She has stated that she has not witnessed any crime or disorder on many 
visits. The Fox have had bands play on various occasions, which do create 
some noise whilst they are playing. She has not found it to be a public 
nuisance in the 15 years they have lived there, and her back garden looks 
directly onto The Fox. The Pub observed Covid restrictions and put in place 
necessary protective measures. 
 
Clive Martin  

 
He has stated that his property is adjacent to ’The Fox’. He has lived there 
since 2006. In this time, he has have never experienced anti-social behaviour 
or disorder by pub customers. They have not been disturbed by the day-to-
day activities of the pub. 
 
Dom Howard  

 
Mr Howard was responsible for sound during a live event at The Fox on 3rd 
July. He states that Mr Earley was keen to emphasise that noise was kept at 
a reasonable level and he therefore monitored output levels with several 
different devices at differing times during the performance. He states that at 
all times my readings indicated sound from the band equipment confirmed to 
the 85db limit which he believes to have been in place due to COVID 19. 

 
He adds that he has been involved in several similar events at The Fox over 
the years that Mr Earley and Ms Kacy have run the establishment and at all 
times they have been consistent that bands should play at reasonable 
volumes and finish promptly within set times. 

 
He believes that this ably demonstrates a commitment from Mr Earley and Ms 
Kacy to their neighbour. 
 
Joy and Alan Bannister  

 
They have submitted a representation in support of the application which is 
relevant to the following licensing objective of the Prevention of Public 
Nuisance. They state that as residents of Hazelwood which is located some 
50m from the Fox they are one of the closest houses to the Fox and are 
therefore well placed to comment on whether the running of the pub has 
caused a public nuisance. They have experienced no issues apart from the 
first instance of outdoor live music this Summer which was quite loud. The 
following live music events were much quieter, and none finished at a late 
hour. 

 
Apart from this one event they do not consider that the running of the pub 
over the past few years has caused a nuisance to us, rather it has been run in 
a way that they have been able to enjoy having this amenity so close to our 
house. 

 
Karen Kashdan  

 
She has stated that confirming that she lives just across Finches Field and 
have never had any issues with noise etc. She states that she has not been 
disturbed by noise during licensing hours or at closing time and although she 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 18



has heard the bands on occasion, they do not disturb the enjoyment of her 
own garden and the events always finish at a respectful time so as not to 
cause disturbance into the night. 
 
Poppy Berry  
 
She has stated that she lives opposite the pub and The Fox has always given 
advanced warning when any live music was to be played. That post lockdown 
live music was brought forward in timings in consideration to neighbours and 
thus in effect has NOT been a nuisance. That before Covid, when live music 
was performed, advanced warning was given, and timings were kept to 
acceptable timings. She is aware of this because her young son's bedroom 
faces the pub, and he has never felt disturbed. 

 
She further stated that she has been more disturbed by a neighbour's son 
who sits in his car, windows closed, listening to repetitive music than by the 
pub. 
 
Sophie Abbott 
 
She has stated that on the many occasions that she has attended The Fox 
there have been groups of young adults and they have always been very well 
behaved and respectable. I have seen bar staff ensuring they are over 18 
before serving them. 
 
She has further stated that The Fox is a safe and incredibly well-run 
establishment well respected by people of all ages. Claire and Tim welcome 
local bands and provide excellent entertainment. They adhere to the times set 
out to open and close and have music and they do all that they can to ensure 
people leave quietly and respect the local residents. I have also seen people 
refused drinks when they have had too much to drink and that she really 
respects them for this. 
 
Susan Burrows 
 
She has made comments that as far as she is aware, there has been no 
crime or disorder at this public house. She is unaware of any public nuisance 
and have good friends who live within 200 meters of the premises who have 
never had any issues or concerns and would indeed voice them if they had. 
 

The full representations are appended to the report  
 

Policy Context 
 
21  Determination of Application for a Premises Licence 

 
The Committee must determine the application in accordance with the 
Licensing Act 2003 (LA03), MSDC Licensing Policy and the Home Office 
Guidance issued under Section 182 Licensing Act 2003, whilst having due 
regard to the applicant’s submissions and relevant representations. 
 
 
 
 
 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 19



22 Section 18 LA03 deals with the determination of the application: 
 
Grant of premises licence 
 
18.  Determination of application for premises licence 
 
(1) This section applies where the relevant licensing authority— 

 
(a) receives an application for a premises licence made in accordance with 
section 17, and 

 
(b) is satisfied that the applicant has complied with any requirement imposed 
on him under subsection (5) of that section. 

 
(2) Subject to subsection (3), the authority must grant the licence in 
accordance with the application subject only to— 

 
(a) such conditions as are consistent with the operating schedule 
accompanying the application, and 

 
(b)any conditions which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the 
licence. 

 
(3) Where relevant representations are made, the authority must— 

 
(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and 

each person who has made such representations agree that a hearing is 
unnecessary, and 
 

(b) having regard to the representations, take such of the steps mentioned in 
subsection (4) (if any) as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. 

 
(4) The steps are— 

 
(a) to grant the licence subject to— 
 
(i) the conditions mentioned in subsection (2)(a) modified to such extent as 
the authority considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives, and 

 
(ii) any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the 

licence; 
 
(b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities 
to which the application relates; 
 
(c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; 
 
(d) to reject the application. 
 

(5) For the purposes of subsection (4)(a)(i) the conditions mentioned in 
subsection (2)(a) are modified if any of them is altered or omitted or any new 
condition is added. 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 20



(6) For the purposes of this section, “relevant representations” means 
representations which— 

 
(a) are about the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence on the 
promotion of the licensing objectives, 

 
(b) meet the requirements of subsection (7), 

 
(c) if they relate to the identity of the person named in the application as 
the proposed premises supervisor, meet the requirements of subsection (9), 
and 

 
(d) are not excluded representations by virtue of section 32 (restriction on 
making representations following issue of provisional statement). 

 
(7) The requirements of this subsection are— 

 
(a)  that the representations were made by a responsible authority or other 
person within the period prescribed under section 17(5)(c), 

 
(b)  that they have not been withdrawn, and 

 
(c) in the case of representations made by a person who is not a 
responsible authority, that they are not, in the opinion of the relevant licensing 
authority, frivolous or vexatious. 

 
23  Relevant Representations 
 

The Licensing Act 2003 requires representations to address the four licensing 
Objectives which are 

 
1. Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
2. Promotion of Public Safety 
3. Prevention of Public Nuisance 
4. Prevention of Harm to children and young persons 

 
24  A representation is a ‘relevant representation’ if it is about the likely effect of 

the grant of the licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives. The 
objector must establish that such a consequence is a likely effect of a grant - 
(ie more probable than not) 
 

25 Guidance Issued Under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
 
 8.16 

 
“A person” in this context includes, for example, a business or a partnership. 
Licensing authorities should not require the nomination of an individual to hold 
the licence or determine the identity of the most appropriate person to hold 
the licence.  

  
8.17 
 
In considering joint applications (which is likely to be a rare occurrence), it 
must be stressed that under section 16(1)(a) of the 2003 Act each applicant 
must be carrying on a business which involves the use of the premises for 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 21



licensable activities. In the case of public houses, this would be easier for a 
tenant to demonstrate than for a pub owning company that is not itself 
carrying on licensable activities. Where licences are to be held by businesses, 
it is desirable that this should be a single business to avoid any lack of clarity 
in accountability.  

 
8.18  
 
A public house may be owned, or a tenancy held, jointly by a husband and 
wife, civil partners, or other partnerships of a similar nature, and both may be 
actively involved in carrying on the licensable activities. In these cases, it is 
entirely possible for the husband and wife or the partners to apply jointly as 
applicant for the premises licence, even if they are not formally partners in 
business terms. This is unlikely to lead to the same issues of clouded 
accountability that could arise where two separate businesses  
apply jointly for the licence. If the application is granted, the premises licence 
would identify the holder as comprising both names and any subsequent 
applications, for example for a variation of the licence, would need to be 
made jointly.  
 

 8.19 
 

…. There is nothing in the 2003 Act which prevents an application being 
made for a premises licence at premises where a premises licence is already 
held.  
 
9.3  
 
Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a 
responsible authority about a proposed operating schedule and it is relevant, 
the licensing authority’s discretion will be engaged. It will also be engaged if 
another person makes relevant representations to the licensing authority, 
which are also not frivolous or vexatious. Relevant representations can be 
made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can be made by 
any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so.  
 
9.4  
 
A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the 
licence on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For 
example, a representation from a local businessperson about the commercial 
damage caused by competition from new licensed premises would not be 
relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a businessperson that 
nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from entering the 
local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that nuisance 
were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should 
relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the 
objectives.  

  
Other Options Considered 
 
26  In order to lawfully provide licensable activities as applied for, they must be 

conducted under the authority of a Premises Licence.  
 
 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 22



Financial Implications 
 
27 The final decision made by the Committee in this matter is subject to appeal 

in the Magistrates Court by any party to the proceedings. 
 

Risk Management Implications 
 
28 None 
 
Equality and Customer Service Implications  
 
29 None 
 
Other Material Implications 
 
30  Section 136 Licensing Act 2003 – A person commits an offence if he carries 

on or attempts to carry a licensable activity on or from any premises 
otherwise, than under and in accordance with an authorisation or he 
knowingly allows a licensable activity to be so carried on. 
 

31 A person guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary 
conviction to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months or to a fine or 
both. 

 
Sustainability Implications  
 
32 None 
 
Background Papers 
 
Appendix 1 – Application Form and plan of premises 
Appendix 2 – Map of area 
Appendix 3 – Further submission submitted by Applicants 
Appendix 4 – Photos of location 
 
Representations opposed to Application 
 
Appendix 5 – Representation from Licensing Authority 
Appendix 6 – Representation from Environmental Protection Team 
Appendix 7 - Representation from Paul Lloyd 
 
Representations in Support of application 
 
Appendix 8 –  Representation from Claire Martin 
Appendix 9 –  Representation from Clive Martin 
Appendix 10 – Representation from Dom Howard 
Appendix 11 – Representation from Joy and Alan Bannister 
Appendix 12 – Representation from Karen Kashdan 
Appendix 13 – Representation from Poppy Berry 
Appendix 14 – Representation from Sophie Abbott 
Appendix 15 – Representation from Susan Burrows 
 
Other Documents 
 
Appendix 16 – Schedule of proposed conditions 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Form Application for a premises licence
service_team_name Licensing Team
service_email_address licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
Your Details
Name/s: Mr Timothy Earley

Miss Claire Kacy
Premises
Postal address of premises or, if none,
ordnance survey map reference or
description:

The Fox Eating and Drinking House
Highbrook Lane, West Hoathly

Postcode RH19 4PJ
Phone (at premises) 01342-810644
Email email redacted

Non-domestic rateable value of premises.£4301 - £33000 (With Alcohol)
Plan of premises https://forms.midsussex.gov.uk/upload_dld.php?

fileid=08a34f244a946725bd1257f284513f65
Applicant type
Please state whether you are applying for
a premises licence as: an individual or individuals

Applicant type
Please confirm: I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves

the use of the premises for licensable activities
Individual Applicants
Title: (e.g. Mr/Mrs) Mr
Name Timothy Earley
Address The Fox Eating and Drinking House

Highbrook Lane, West Hoathly
Postcode RH19 4PJ
Phone 01342-810644
Email email redacted

Date of birth 27/01/1969
18 or over-I am 18 years old or over yes
Nationality British
Is there a second individual applicant? Yes
Second Applicant
Title: (e.g. Mr/Mrs) Miss
Name Claire Kacy
Address redacted

APPENDIX 1

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 25



Postcode redacted

Phone redacted

Email email redacted

Date of birth 14/11/1969
second app 18 or over-I am 18 years old
or over yes

Nationality British
Other Applicants
Operating Schedule
When do you want the premises licence
to start? 16/08/2021

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when do you want it to end?
If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one time, please state the number
expected to attend.
Description of premises
Description Public House

Floor Plan Attached
Situated in West Hoathly Village

Licensable Activities
Plays
Will you be provisioning Plays? No
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Films
Will you be provisioning Films? No
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Indoor SportsLiquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 26



Will you be provisioning Indoor Sporting
events? No

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Boxing or wrestling
Will you be provisioning boxing or
wrestling events? No

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Live Music
Will you be provisioning Live Music? Yes
Monday
Start Time
End Time
Tuesday
Start Time 12:00
End Time 23:00
Wednesday
Start Time 12:00
End Time 23:00
Thursday
Start Time 12:00
End Time 23:00
Friday
Start Time 12:00
End Time 23:00
Saturday

12:00
23:00

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 27



Start Time 12:00
End Time 23:00
Sunday
Start Time 12:00
End Time 22:00
Where will the performance of live music
take place? Indoors may include a tent. Indoors

Please state type of activity to be
authorised, if not already stated, and give
relevant further details, for example (but
not exclusively) whether or not music will
be amplified or unamplified.

One band a Month maximum.

State any seasonal variations for performing live music: For example (but not exclusively) where the
activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.
Non standard timings. Where the premises intends to use the premises for the performance of live
music at different times from those listed above, please list: For example (but not exclusively), where
you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
Recorded Music
Will you be provisioning Recorded
Music? Yes

Monday
Start Time
End Time
Tuesday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Wednesday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Thursday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Friday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Saturday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Sunday

10:00

23:00

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 28



Start Time 10:00
End Time 22:30
Where will the playing of recorded music
take place? Indoors may include a tent. Indoors

Please state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for
example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.
State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music: For example (but not exclusively) where the
activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.
Non standard timings. Where the premises intends to use the premises for the playing of recorded
music at different times from those listed above, please list:
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g.
Christmas Eve.
Performances of dance
Will you be provisioning Performances of
dance? No

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Similar to live music, recorded music or performances of dance
Will you be provisioning anything with a
similar description to live music,
recorded music or Performances of
dance?

Yes

Monday
Start Time
End Time
Tuesday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Wednesday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Thursday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Friday

10:00

23:00

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 29



Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Saturday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Sunday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 22:30
Please give a description of the type of
entertainment that the club will be
providing

Spotify Music and or recorded music

Where will the entertainment take place?
Indoors may include a tent. Indoors

Please state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for
example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.
State any seasonal variations for the entertainment: For example (but not exclusively) where the activity
will occur on additional days during the summer months.
Non standard timings. Where the premises intends to use the premises for the entertainment at different
times from those listed above, please list: For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity
to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
Late Night Refreshment
Will you be provisioning any late night
refreshment? No

Monday
Start Time
End Time
Tuesday
Start Time
End Time
Wednesday
Start Time
End Time
Thursday
Start Time
End Time
Friday
Start Time
End Time
Saturday Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 30



Start Time
End Time
Sunday
Start Time
End Time
Where will the provision of late night
refreshment take place? Indoors may
include a tent.
State any seasonal variations:For example (but not exclusively) where late night refreshment is provided
on additional days during the summer months.
Non standard timings. Where the premises intends to use the premises for the provision of late night
refreshment at different times from those listed above, please list: For example (but not exclusively),
where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
Supply of alcohol
Will you be provisioning any alcohol? Yes
Monday
Start Time
End Time
Tuesday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Wednesday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Thursday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Friday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Saturday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Sunday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 22:30
Where will the supplied alcohol be
consumed? Both on and off premises

10:00

23:00

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 31



State any seasonal variations : For example (but not exclusively) where the supply of alcohol will occur
on additional days during the summer months.
Non standard timings. Where the premises intends to use the premises for the supply of alcohol at
different times from those listed above, please list: For example (but not exclusively), where you wish
the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
Premises Supervisor
Name Timothy Earley
Address The Flat, The Fox Eating and Drinking House

Highbrook Lane, West Hoathly
Postcode RH19 4PJ
Personal licence number (if known) 018341
Issuing licensing authority (if known) Mid Sussex
Opening Hours
Monday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Tuesday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Wednesday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Thursday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Friday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Saturday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 23:00
Sunday
Start Time 10:00
End Time 22:30
State any seasonal variations : For example (but not exclusively) where the supply of alcohol will occur
on additional days during the summer months.
Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open at different times from those
listed above, please list: For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer
on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 32



Adult Entertainment
Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children.
Licensing Objectives
General - all four licensing objectives
(b,c,d,e): Please list here steps you will
take to promote all four licensing
objectives together.

Mr Earley and Miss Kacy shall ensure that all times when the premises are
open for any licensable activity, there are sufficient competent staff on duty 
at the premises for the purpose of fulfilling the terms and conditions of the 
licence and for preventing crime and disorder. The Licensees shall ensure 
that all staff will undertake training in their responsibilities in relation to the 
sale of alcohol, particularly with regard to drunkenness and underage 
persons. Records will be kept re training and refresher training.

The prevention of crime and disorder: Any incidents of a criminal nature that may occur on the premises
will be reported to the Police.
The Licensees will install comprehensive CCTV coverage at the
premises and it is operated and maintained at the premises. The CCTV
system shall conform to the following points:
1. Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance and exit doors both
inside and outside.
2. Cameras overlooking floor areas should be wide angled to give an
overview of the premises.
3. Be capable of visually confirming the nature of the crime committed.
4. Provide a linked record of the date, time and place of any image.
5. Operate under existing light levels within and outside the premises.
6. Have the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet.
7. Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture
retention.
8. Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in
operation.
9. Digital images will be kept for 31 days.
10. Police will have access to images at any reasonable time.

Public safety: Appropriate fire safety procedures are in place including fire 
extinguishers (foam, H20 and CO2), fire blanket, internally illuminated 
fire exit signs, numerous smoke detectors and emergency lighting. All 
appliances are inspected annually. All emergency exits shall be kept free 
from obstruction at all times. The number of persons in the premises 
(patrons/staff) shall not exceed the capacity of the premises as defined 
by the Licence Holders Fire Risk assessment. 

The prevention of public nuisance: All customers will be asked to leave quietly.
Clear and legible notices will be prominently displayed to remind
customers to leave quietly and have regard for our neighbours.

The protection of children from harm: The premises will operate a challenge 25 policy whereby any person
attempting to buy alcohol who appears to be under 25 will be asked for 
photographic ID to prove their age. The recommended forms of ID that 
will be accepted are passports, official photographic cards issued by EU 
states bearing a hologram or ultraviolet feature, driving licences with a 
photograph, photograph military ID or proof of age cards bearing the 
"pass" mark hologram. Signage advertising the "Challenge 25" will be 
displayed in prominent locations in the premises.
All staff will be trained for UNDERAGE SALES PREVENTION regularly.
A register of refused sales shall be kept and maintained on the premises.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 33



Right to work
I have included documents
demonstrating my entitlement to work in
the United Kingdom or my share code
issued by the Home Office online right to
work checking service-I have included
documents demonstrating my
entitlement to work in the United
Kingdom or my share code issued by the
Home Office online right to work
checking service

yes

Please attach documents demonstrating
your entitlement to work in the United
Kingdom.

https://forms.midsussex.gov.uk/upload_dld.php?
fileid=0b8a2a8654b1e0b89657a42aa4a78b18

Signatures
I understand I am not entitled to be
issued with a licence if I do not have the
entitlement to live and work in the UK (or
if I am subject to a condition preventing
me from doing work relating to the
carrying on of a licensable activity) and
that my licence will become invalid if I
cease to be entitled to live and work in
the UK (please read guidance note 15-I
understand I am not entitled to be issued
with a licence if I do not have the
entitlement to live and work in the UK (or
if I am subject to a condition preventing
me from doing work relating to the
carrying on of a licensable activity) and
that my licence will become invalid if I
cease to be entitled to live and work in
the UK (please read guidance note 15

yes

The DPS named in this application form
is entitled to work in the UK (and is not
subject to conditions preventing him or
her from doing work relating to a
licensable activity) and I have seen a
copy of his or her proof of entitlement to
work, or have conducted an online right
to work check using the Home Office
online right to work checking service
which confirmed their right to work-The
DPS named in this application form is
entitled to work in the UK (and is not
subject to conditions preventing him or
her from doing work relating to a
licensable activity) and I have seen a
copy of his or her proof of entitlement to
work, or have conducted an online right
to work check using the Home Office

yes

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 34



Item Price Total

Non-domestic rateable value of premises. - £4301 -
£33000 (With Alcohol)

£190.00 £190.00

TOTAL £190.00

online right to work checking service
which confirmed their right to work
Please indicate your agreement by
entering your name Timothy Earley and Claire Kacy

Date 13/08/2021
Capacity Business owners of The Fox Eating and Drinking House
Submit & Pay
Address for correspondence associated
with this application

The Fox Eating and Drinking House
Highbrook Lane, West Hoathly

Postcode RH19 4PJ
Phone 01342-810644
Correspondence Email email redacted

Confirm Email email redacted

Amount to be paid: GBP 190

Order summary:

The message has been sent from 94.30.103.0 (United Kingdom) at 2021-08-13 16:31:35 on Chrome
92.0.4515.131
Entry ID: 26

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 35



Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 36



APPENDIX 2

Liquor Licensing C
om

m
ittee - 12 O

ctober 2021
37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

KC - email redacted
Jon Bryant; TM
Re: Representation The Fox 
15 September 2021 12:00:18 
image002.png
image001.jpg

Hi Jon

We really appreciate that our application is taking a lot of your time up at present, thank 
you for bearing with us.
The licence conditions that we could add, would be not to have any amplified outside 
music, if this would help? Also possibly put the premise licence in just my name? Any 
advice on this would be highly appreciated.

We held 3 live music events, coming out of lock down, for which 2 of them were 
afternoon slots and the third closed down at 9pm. For all 3 events we read the decibel 
levels with a reader, we moved the location of the 2nd and 3rd bands to reduce noise 
levels, also placed under our outside pagoda which has a roof, to further reduce noise 
levels. The reason for the outside set up was due to the fact that we had turned part of our 
inside area into a shop to help support our income through lockdowns, and also most of 
our customers preferred to be situated outside due to social distancing. 
We spoke to most of our locals and regular customers before all 3 events to get an idea of 
the response from villagers (noise levels) and were given the thumbs up, all 3 events were 
also advertised on Facebook, our website and outside advertising, giving fair notice in 
advance. 

Tim would also like to apologise for his behaviour, conversing with the environment 
protection department, this was down to a lot of stress coming out of COVID 19 
lockdowns, but obviously still no excuses. 

Look forward to hearing from you in due course

Claire

Sent from Sky Yahoo Mail for iPad

APPENDIX 3

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 39

mailto:Jon.Bryant@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Foverview.mail.yahoo.com%2F%3F.src%3DiOS&data=04%7C01%7CJon.Bryant%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cd1148ac30a934bf11f7108d97837ffaa%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637673004176664340%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=%2FzYtbrlE4quEaybpNzEqLN%2F1bMx7kVulwIBiDFsplBI%3D&reserved=0




From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

KC - email redacted
Jon Bryant
The Fox Eating and Drinking House - West Hoathly 
24 September 2021 09:22:58

Dear Jon

As per our conversation Wednesday this week, I write with confirmation that Tim and
myself wish to add to our licence application: No amplified music will be played either
inside or outside the premises.

We hope that this will help with the objective of prevention of public nuisance made by the
environmental protection dept/Adam Dracott and Mr Paul Lloyd.

Kindest regards 

Claire Kacy/Timothy Earley 
The Fox Eating and Drinking House
West Hoathly 
RH19 4PJ 

Sent from Sky Yahoo Mail for iPad

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 40

mailto:Jon.Bryant@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Foverview.mail.yahoo.com%2F%3F.src%3DiOS&data=04%7C01%7Cjon.bryant%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C5d12f728b6e84c2099f308d97f34829b%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637680685773117926%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=SxsD0zI2ORFCUS3FZw%2FQA6g2tlCu3zlU9nJUtxSOrzU%3D&reserved=0


From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

TM email redacted
Jon Bryant
Re: Representation The Fox 
17 September 2021 14:45:18

Dear Jon 

In response to your last matter which I take all on board and our listening to the comments 
After running the brewers in vines cross for 6  years and receiving no complaints it 
saddens me that I feel my personality is come into question , even though I take all your 
comments on board I feel heartbroken and feel the need to address some points 

3 July 2017 don t recall this meeting , if it was it would have been with Paul Thornton who 
I worked closely with helped with all licensing adjectives and so say paper work was not in 
place it was promptly put together and all training given to the staff,

12 November 2018  in. Fact was a 60th birthday and believe had a ten in place ,if not this 
was an over site and  having to keep closing the doors , we then decided that this would be 
a problem in the summer with bands , that we put a AC for future events so all windows 
and doors remained shut,

July 3rd been a Wednesday can only recall it been my sons 18th birthday upstairs in my 
private flat or not me at all , I could have offered the cctv or your department could have 
viewed the footage at any time to prove to you that if anyone was in the pub at these times 

Octtober 11 egg gate scandal , I totally take this on board ,and changed all proceeding on 
our alleging sheets and worked closely with Klara from e h o , the display of a two Starr 
rating was not left up to deceive as the Dorset oyster sold as a Cornish oyster they were the 
week before , but this did alow us to check all invoices correctly and be more vigilant better 
training has been given to staff so are more aware of what is in every dish . The question 
was asked if egg was in the burger which it wasn’t , but in the dressing , this was a flaw 
which we have acted on , if you need anymore information happy to discuss further 

Further more the report of no social distance regs were in place during covid we had spaced 
tables apart had a oneway system in place each time the law changed so did we I believe 
we went over and more with the proceedings . I had three random visits from the police 
during the lockdown I think one with someone from your department , everything was ok 
and in line I can’t stress enough the length we went to , 

The events we did during opening up in the summer the plh was present mr Lloyd and I 
checking if the noise level was ok we took sound recordings front and back of the pub 
checked on customers , if someone was there from the council why didn’t they saysomthing 
to my self and mr Lloyd at the time , its been so confusing who was dps at that time Paul 
had removed me from the position unless I bared my business partner from the premises 
which was difficult if she worked on site Paul also led me to believe that he was putting the 
paperwork in , which he didn’t , but has sent in an email recent saying his partner was 
going to do it but was busy .I sent an email from Paul  to you how I read the mail was that 
Paul wanted to give up the licence 

I know I can be hot headed but I still believe im a good operator , we all make mistakes
,and im sorry  I believe with a new licence with 24 hour cctv in place which can be viewed

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 41

mailto:Jon.Bryant@midsussex.gov.uk


if a problem ever occurs .which it won’t 

Not been able to fully trade is probberly going to bankrupt myself and make me homeless 
and also my chef who relies on accommodation .also miss kacy will be made homeless too 
, also not been able to pay back the government loan .already made my manager redundant 
and let 4 members of the team go ,  I think I’ve learnt my lesson I do take my resposilits 
very serious we won’t be having any band in the foreseeable future . Since the Irish have 
left I believe I’ve cleaned up the pub and got rid of the bad element , worked hard 
providing a safe place for the village to use , learning and striving 
Kind regards 
Tim 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 42



  APPENDIX 4 

 

 

 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 43



  APPENDIX 4 
 

 

 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 44



  APPENDIX 4 
 

 

 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 45



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Michael Bateman
To: licensing
Subject: LI/21/0881 - The Fox Eating And Drinking House, Highbrook Lane, West Hoathly, East Grinstead, West

Sussex, RH19 4PJ
Date: 15 September 2021 14:46:23
Attachments: image001.jpg

image002.jpg

Dear Licensing Team

LICENSING CONSULTATION: The Fox Eating & Drinking House, Highbrook Lane,
West Hoathly, RH19 4PJ
REF: LI/21/0881

As a Responsible Authority, the Licensing Authority objects to the application for a
premises licence at The Fox Eating and Drinking House, Highbrook Lane, West
Hoathly, RH19 4PJ (herein The Fox), from applicants Timothy Earley and Claire Kacy.
The licensing authority, having regard to the Secretary of State’s Guidance and our
Statement of Licensing Policy, has considered the application and its ability to promote
the following licensing objectives:

Prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety
Prevention of public nuisance

Paul Lloyd has been the Premises Licence Holder at The Fox since 19 May 2014, with
Timothy Earley named the DPS. During this time, the Licensing Authority has recorded
the following concerns against the DPS Timothy Earley at the premises.

On 3 July 2017, a licence inspection found the following contraventions: 
Insufficient training records for staff, no Age Verification Policy, no DPS 
Authorisation form, failure to display a summary of the premises licence, refusal/
incident records not being kept, and no Fire Risk Assessment report.
On 12 November 2018, a local resident complained of late-night noise until 01:00, 
beyond the licensing hours of 23:00. Timothy Earley admitted a 50th birthday at 
the site had continued until this time.
On 3 July 2019, a local resident complained of loud music from the establishment 
until 00:15.
On 11 October 2019, we were informed by West Sussex County Council that 
Timothy Earley had pleaded guilty to food safety charges after serving food 
containing egg to a customer ordering an egg-free meal. The pub was also 
displaying a food hygiene rating of five when they only had a two rating at the 
time. Deborah Urquhart, West Sussex County Council Cabinet Member for 
Environment, said: “In the course of the original complaint and two subsequent 
inspections Mr Earley committed a number of offences including displaying an 
incorrect food hygiene rating, inaccurate information on the menu and serving 
unsafe food. Despite being given a chance to put matters right at an early stage, 
he did not do so.”
On 20 January 2020, the Licensing Authority issued a warning letter to Timothy 
Earley, following complaints of noise emanating from the premises at 03:20, with 
the Temporary Event Notice in place finishing at 02:00.
On 11 August 2020, a complaint was received that the establishment was not

APPENDIX 5

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 47

mailto:Michael.Bateman@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk




complying with COVID-19 social distancing requirements.
On 27 May 2021, the Licensing Authority issued a warning to Timothy Earley
following a complaint of a music event held in the area outside of The Fox, without
a Temporary Event Notice to permit the event.

On 11 January 2021, Paul Lloyd removed Timothy Earley as DPS, stating that he had 
no confidence that Timothy Earley was promoting the licensing objectives. On 10 
August 2021, Timothy Earley applied to the Licensing Authority to transfer the Premises 
Licence to himself. The Licensing Authority rejected this application as Timothy Earley 
had not taken any reasonable steps to obtain the necessary consent from the current 
Premises Licence Holder, Paul Lloyd, despite him living adjacent to The Fox. 
Furthermore, having spoken to Paul Lloyd, he confirmed he did not consent to the 
transfer and was unaware of the application. On 16 August 2021, Paul Lloyd resigned 
as DPS. As a result, Timothy Earley now applies as a joint applicant for a separate 
Premises Licence at the establishment.

The Licensing Authority has been made aware of repeated poor behaviour and 
insufficient control of activities occurring at The Fox. Consequently, on the balance of 
probability, the Licensing Authority does not have confidence that Timothy Earley will 
uphold the licensing objectives as a Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises 
Supervisor and therefore objects to this application.

Kind Regards,

Michael

Michael Bateman
Licensing, Food and Safety Team Leader
Environmental Health

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 48

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7CJon.Bryant%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C039aafecb8b740c44e1b08d9784f3382%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637673103817816435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=p8Igl9mQmM1HnxwnbQDjrs7Nywfkk4cZ23b%2Ba1%2F3r70%3D&reserved=0


The Fox - Programmed Inspection

2017

Report created with iAuditor
Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 49

http://m.onelink.me/f27673d


Licensing Inspection
conducted for

The Fox

Audit Title
The Fox - Programmed Inspection

Conducted on
13/06/2017, 10:05

Officer
Fiona Spears

Address

Highbrook Lane
West Hoathly
West Sussex
RH19 4PJ

Premises name
The Fox

Licence number
PWA0060

Uniform ref:
14/00858/LAPMD

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 50



The assessor/s believe the information contained within this risk assessment report to 
be correct at the time of printing. The assessor/s do not accept responsibility for any 
consequences arising from the use of the information herein.
The report is based on matters which were observed or came to the attention of the 
assessor/s during the day of the assessment and should not be relied upon as an 
exhaustive record of all possible risks or hazards that may exist or potential 
improvements that can be made.

Disclaimer

The Fox - Programmed Inspection - 3 -

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 51



Table of Contents

LICENSING INSPECTION 2
Disclaimer 3

INSPECTION 5
Premises inspection details 5

RISK ANALYSIS 7
Risk Assessment 7

MEDIA 8

The Fox - Programmed Inspection - 4 -

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 52



Inspection

Question Response Details

Premises inspection details

Telephone number

01342 810644 - mobile redacted

Premises licence summary on display? No

Licence held at premises? Yes

Premises licence holder: Mr Paul Lloyd

DPS-name on licence Timothy  Earley

DPS same as that listed on licence? Yes

DPS present? Yes

Authorised person:

Gaming machines No

Regulated Entertainment Recorded Music

Late Night refreshment? No

Sale/Supply of alcohol Yes

Location Both On and Off Premises

Does the licence permit the activities being 
carried on?

Yes

Any conditions NOT being complied with:- Yes

Conditions not complied with:

Awareness of licensing objectives by 
licence holder/DPS

Fair

Summary of key points discussed Training records were set up and signed by staff and DPS
I will send a letter itemising the licensing requirements for 
both The Fox and West Hoathly School Association, both 
of which Tim Earley is the DPS.
I left templates and guidance for his information. I will 
revisit in approx one month.

Actions Revisit, Letter

The Fox - Programmed Inspection - 5 -

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 53



Question Response Details

Inspecting officer Fiona Spears

Photo/s if required

Appendix 1 Appendix 2

Officer signature Fiona spears 03/07/2017
10:48

Date and Time 13/06/2017, 10:00

The Fox - Programmed Inspection - 6 -

signature redacted

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 54



Risk Analysis

Question Response Details

Risk Assessment

What is the main business type

50

Pubs/Bars/Nightclubs/Cinemas/Events

Hours of operation

10

Between 07:00 and 23:00

Compliance with Legislation/Conditions

25

Fair - most requirements complied with

Confidence in Management and Control systems in place

10

Minor non-compliance issues but confident of management/controls

Total (see top right on screen)

95

Category C

Medium Risk

Every 18 months

The Fox - Programmed Inspection - 7 -

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 55



Media

Appendix 1 Appendix 2

The Fox - Programmed Inspection - 8 -

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 56



Mr Tim Earley 
The Fox 
Highbrook Lane 
West Hoathly 
East Grinstead 
West Sussex 
RH19 4PJ 

Contact:  Fiona Spears 
Tel: 01444 477294 
Fax: 01444 477366 
Our Ref: 14/00858/LAPRMD 

Date: 3RD July  2017 

Dear Mr Earley 
The Fox - Premises licence PWA0060 

West Hoathly School Association – PWA0541 
Licensing Act 2003 

I visited the above premises on 13th June 2017. The main objective of the assessment was to 
establish compliance with the four licensing objectives: 

1. The Prevention of Crime and disorder
2. Promotion of Public safety
3. Prevention of Public Nuisance
4. Prevention of Harm to children and young people.

The aim is to achieve this by ensuring that the licensed activities provided are being carried out 
in accordance with: 

• The Premises Licence and associated conditions.
• The provisions of the Licensing Act 2003
• Guidance issued under Section 182 Licensing Act 2003
• Our Statement of Licensing Policy

The assessment identified a number of issues that require your attention as summarised 
below: 

• Training records for staff, these need to show the content of training and be signed off by
staff and DPS. These need to include awareness of the licensable activities/conditions and
licensing objectives, challenge awareness, ID Guidance and any other Policies that the
premises have adopted.

• Age Verification Policy to be produced and signed off
• DPS Authorisation form to be complete and signed
• Summary of the premises licence  to be displayed
• Refusal/Incident records kept
• Fire Risk Assessment report

The above will be also be required for West Hoathly School Association Premise Licence 
PWA0541, we discussed keeping a file which can be updated when an event takes place. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 57



Contd 
I have enclosed templates and guidance for your information and use. 

I have diarised a revisit on Tuesday 18th July 2017 at 10:00,   I hope this date/time is 
convenient to discuss the above matters, but if you wish to change this appointment or require 
any further information, please contact me. 
Yours sincerely 

Fiona Spears 
Environment Enforcement Officer 

Enc 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 58



Report a problem with Noise, Odour, Dust or Smoke 

About You 

Timestamp: 11/11/2018   00:00 

The information you provide will be subject to rigorous measures and procedures to make sure it can't be 
seen, accessed or disclosed to anyone who shouldn't be allowed to see it. 

For information about how Mid Sussex District Council stores and processes your data please see our 
privacy notice available at https://www.midsussex.gov.uk/about-us/privacy-notice/.  

About You 

Name 

Address 

Contact 

We will need your contact details to get in touch for further details and to update you on our investigation. 

How do you want to be 
contacted? 

Email 

Mobile or home phone 
number: 

Email address 

Your contact details will need to be valid for us to contact you. 

Complaint Address 

Address where noise or 
disturbance is coming from 

The Fox Pub, Highbrook Lane, West Hoathly 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 59



Type of Problem 

Which of the following does the problem relate to? 

Bonfires 

Dust 

Odour 

Dog 

Music 

Construction noise 

Commercial/Industrial 

Other 

Is this a regular problem? Yes 

Other (Please specify) Music and shouting, not usually this late 

How Often 

How often does it happen? 

Other 

If Other, please specify It usually stops by 11 or 11.30 in the summer 

Problem Duration 

How long has the problem been going on for? 

Please select one option Happened once 

Time of day 

What time of day does it mostly take place? 

Please select a time Between 11pm and 7am 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 60



How does it affect you? This form is too limited, check boxes don't apply 

the loud voices happen often, with people smoking & drinking outside, 
but the first time this year that it's been this late and that the music has 
carried on so late 

It's 1am, I can't sleep and it's going into Remembrance Sunday 

Incredibly inconsiderate and disrespectful 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 61



Report a problem with Noise, Odour, Dust or Smoke 

About You 

Timestamp: 03/07/2019   00:00 

The information you provide will be subject to rigorous measures and procedures to make sure it can't be 
seen, accessed or disclosed to anyone who shouldn't be allowed to see it. 

For information about how Mid Sussex District Council stores and processes your data please see our 
privacy notice available at https://www.midsussex.gov.uk/about-us/privacy-notice/.  

About You 

Name 

Address 

Contact 

We will need your contact details to get in touch for further details and to update you on our investigation. 

How do you want to be 
contacted? 

Email 

Mobile or home phone 
number: 

Email address 

Your contact details will need to be valid for us to contact you. 

Complaint Address 

Address where noise or 
disturbance is coming from 

The Fox 
Highbrook Lane 
West Hoathly 
RH19 4PJ 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 62



Type of Problem 

Which of the following does the problem relate to? 

Bonfires 

Dust 

Odour 

Dog 

Music 

Construction noise 

Commercial/Industrial 

Other 

Is this a regular problem? No 

How Often 

How often does it happen? 

Other 

If Other, please specify Out of hours music until 12:15 am Tuesday 2nd July 

Problem Duration 

How long has the problem been going on for? 

Please select one option Happened once 

Time of day 

What time of day does it mostly take place? 

Please select a time Between 11pm and 7am 

How does it affect you? Music playing outside, assumed to be from licensed premises, until 
well past normal licensing hours. We expect to hear occasional noise 
from inside the pub but this was music playing outside that continued 
until 12:15 on a midweek night when I need to rise for work at 04:30 
the following day. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 63



West Sussex County Council Press release 

Pub landlord fined for serving unsafe food 

A pub landlord in West Sussex has been ordered to pay more than £1,600 in fines and costs after 
serving unsafe food  

Release date: 22 October 2019 

A pub landlord has been ordered to pay more than £1,600 in fines and costs after serving food 
containing egg to a customer ordering an egg free meal. 

Timothy Earley, who runs The Fox Eating and Drinking House, West Hoathly, pleaded guilty to food 
safety charges at Worthing Magistrates Court on 11 October 2019. He was fined £307 and made to 
pay costs of £1,360.76 as well as a victim surcharge of £30. 

Following a complaint to West Sussex Trading Standards in 2018 from a customer who found a bone 
in a vegetarian meal, Trading Standards officers visited the premises and found there was 
insufficient information about what allergens meals contained. 

The pub was also displaying a five star hygiene rating when they only had two stars at the time. 

Trading Standards sent a warning letter to Mr Earley highlighting his legal responsibilities as a food 
business operator. 

In January 2019 officers carried out a follow up visit. One posed as a customer and ordered an egg-
free burger meal which, when sent for analysis, was found to contain egg. This could have caused a 
severe reaction to an egg allergy sufferer. 

As a result of this incident, Trading Standards brought charges against Mr Earley for selling unsafe 
food. 

Peter Aston, Trading Standards Team Manager, said: “The consequences of poor allergen control can 
be incredibly serious. Even though no members of the public were harmed by eating at The Fox 
Eating and Drinking House, someone with a severe food allergy could potentially have died.” 

Deborah Urquhart, West Sussex County Council Cabinet Member for Environment, said: “In the 
course of the original complaint and two subsequent inspections Mr Earley committed a number of 
offences including displaying an incorrect food hygiene rating, inaccurate information on the menu 
and serving unsafe food. Despite being given a chance to put matters right at an early stage, he did 
not do so. I hope this outcome will act as a deterrent to other West Sussex food businesses.” 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 64

https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/
https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/


Home New Call Reported In Progress Actioned RNWD Locked Search

Call Details

Open associated manual in new window

Status: Call ID Number:

Time & Date Reported: Time & Date First Actioned:

Initial Call Taken By: Extension Number:

Authority: Caller's Name:

969414 

17/11/2019 00:38:12

58114

Address:

PostCode:

Telephone:

Tenant: OAP: No 

Children: Disabled: No 

Property List Checked: Property Zone: N/A

Details: Mid Sussex DC - noise complaint about The Fox Pub, West Hoathly - loud bass music - party 

- people everywhere - ongoing issue - louder than its ever been before - RNWD - AE 

Category: Noise

Copy call details to new call

Page 1 of 1Out-of-Hours

18/11/2019
Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 65



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

pollution
The Fox Inn - West Hoathly 
15 December 2019 22:24:04

Hello

I am writing from my bedroom with the bass of the music from The Fox Inn beating through my walls.

It’s 10.20pm on a Sunday evening. No approach has been made about a special event.

This constitutes a nuisance and I’d like to log a complaint.

I am aware that this is not the first instance of it happening and direct approaches and requests have been made 
by neighbours yet to no avail.

So it is important to log this as a formal complaint and a request for some assistance in curbing this noise issue 
at unsociable hours.

Thankyou in advance

Sent from my iPhone

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 66



Contact: Paul Thornton Your Ref  Date: 20 January 2020 
Tel: 01444 477428  Our Ref 14/00858/LAPRMD 
Email: licensing@midsussex.gov.uk 

Mr T Earley 
The Fox 
Highbrook Lane 
West Hoathly 
East Grinstead 
RH19 4PJ 

Dear Mr Earley 

I am writing to you in your capacity as the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) for The Fox, 
Highbrook Lane, West Hoathly, RH19 4PJ. 

I refer to your visit to the Council Offices on Thursday 16th January when my colleague, Mrs Cooper from 
the Environmental Protection Team played some recordings of noise which had emanated from The Fox. 

I understand that Mrs Cooper has written to you about these recordings separately. 

One of the recordings caught regulated entertainment in the form of karaoke at 0320am on New Years 
Day. You had a Temporary Event Notice for New Years Eve finishing at 2am on New Years Day for the 
sale of alcohol and regulated entertainment.  

The inference here is that you were providing a licensable activity beyond the permitted hours. Whilst I 
clearly cannot prove that you were selling alcohol at this time, it would be reasonable to infer this was 
taking place whilst the pub was still open, and you were providing regulated entertainment.  This is 
wholly unacceptable, particularly when it led to complaints about noise from the site.    

I have previously spoken to you about the permitted hours for licensable activities at the pub.  You are 
aware of the gravity of engaging in licensable activities beyond permitted hours. On conviction there is 
an unlimited fine and or six months imprisonment.  

In addition, you run the risk (and this is not dependant upon a prosecution) of having the licence 
reviewed by a Licensing Committee. This can result in the licence being revoked, you removed as DPS 
and conditions being placed upon the premises licence. The Committee also has the power to remove 
your right to have regulated entertainment at all if it upholds the noise complaints.  

We discussed noise from the outside area of the pub. I have suggested an option of closing this area to 
your customers after 2230 hours and then only permitting those who wish to leave the premises to 
smoke, to do so without their drinks.  This is an entirely voluntary matter for you.  

Oaklands Road 
Haywards Heath 
West Sussex 
RH16 1SS

Switchboard: 01444 458166 

DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1 
www.midsussex.gov.uk

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 67



This matter is now closed but has been recorded as a complaint against the pub. No further action will 
be taken beyond the words of advice given to you last week and confirmed in this letter. The details of 
this complaint may be cited in the event of future action.  

Yours Sincerely 

Mr Paul Thornton 
Senior Licensing Officer 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 68



From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Jon Bryant
TE - email redacted 
email redacted 
The Fox, West Hoathly
10 August 2020 17:04:00 image001.jpg
image003.png

Dear Mr Earley
I am writing to you regarding reports that I have had regarding alleged threats that have been 
made towards the Premises Licence Holder, and I have been asked to provide clarity regarding 
each of these roles. The Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) is appointed by the Premises 
Licence Holder.
As you will be aware; a designated premises supervisor is the person who has day-to-day 
responsibility for the running of the business and is responsible for authorising the alcohol sales. If 
you are removed as the DPS then you do not have the authority to authorise the sale of alcohol in 
the premises.
The Premises Licence Holder can apply to vary the existing DPS and appoint one of their own 
choosing; Section 37(4)(b) of the Licensing Act 2003 requires the premises licence holder to notify 
the existing designated premises supervisor (if any) about this application. It is sufficient for the 
licensee to inform the existing premises supervisor in writing, without the need to share the 
specific details of the application. You do not have to consent for this change to take effect.
The Premises Licence holder must ensure that the Premises is being operated in a way that is 
consistent with the Premises Licence.
I trust that this provides clarity regarding the positions of the DPS and Premises Licence holder. 
Kind regards
Jon Bryant
Jon Bryant
Senior Licensing Officer
Mid Sussex District Council
Environmental Health

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 69

mailto:Jon.Bryant@midsussex.gov.uk
http://www.midsussex.gov.uk/




Contact: Jon Bryant   Our Ref: PWA0060 Date: 12th January 2021 
Direct Line: 01444 477076 Your Ref:  
E-Mail: jon.bryant@midsussex.gov.uk

Mr Earley 
The Fox 
Highbrook Lane 
West Hoathly 
East Grinstead 
West Sussex 
RH19 4PJ 

Dear Mr Earley, 

The Fox 

I am writing to you in respect of the current situation at the Fox to confirm in writing the recent telephone 
conversations that I have had with yourself in order to clarify the position in respect of the Licensing 
Authority and to avoid any confusion. 

Firstly, I refer to my email dated 10th August 2020 where I stated: 

The Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) is appointed by the Premises Licence Holder. 

As you will be aware; a designated premises supervisor is the person who has day-to-day responsibility 
for the running of the business and is responsible for authorising the alcohol sales. If you are removed as 
the DPS then you do not have the authority to authorise the sale of alcohol in the premises. 

The Premises Licence Holder can apply to vary the existing DPS and appoint one of their own choosing; 
Section 37(4)(b) of the Licensing Act 2003 requires the premises licence holder to notify the existing 
designated premises supervisor (if any) about this application. It is sufficient for the licensee to inform the 
existing premises supervisor in writing, without the need to share the specific details of the 
application.  You do not have to consent for this change to take effect. 

I can confirm that on the 11th January 2021 the Licensing Authority received the application to remove 
yourself as the DPS and Mr Lloyd has appointed himself as the current DPS. This change has taken 
place with immediate effect in accordance with Section 38 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

You are therefore no longer the DPS of this premises. There is no right of appeal against this decision, 
you have to be informed and I am aware that Mr Lloyd has informed you, however for avoidance of 
doubt, this letter additionally informs you of this application and variation to the Premises Licence. 

Mr Lloyd has informed me that his intention is to resign as the DPS within the near future. As the 
Premises Licence Holder, he can do this and leave the Premises without a DPS. I remind you that 
without a current Designated Premises supervisor alcohol is not permitted by law to be sold from the 
premises. 

Oaklands Road 
Haywards Heath 
West Sussex 
RH16 1SS

Switchboard: 01444 458166 
Fax: 01444 477461 

DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1 
www.midsussex.gov.uk 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 70



Any replacement DPS must be nominated by Mr Lloyd as the PLH. He must be satisfied that whoever 
he appoints will follow his guidance and instructions and strictly adhere to the Licensing Act 2003, and 
that the DPS will not be influenced or coerced in any way by any third party. 

I can confirm that Mr Lloyd has approached both myself and the Police Licensing Team for advice 
regarding the situation at the Pub and his available options. As I have stated to you several times on the 
phone, my advice is based on the Licensing Act 2003. The Premises Licence Holder, Mr Lloyd, has to be 
confident that the DPS, who acts on his behalf, is promoting all of the Licensing Objectives.  

Given the recent incidents that have been detailed together with the occurrences that I was already 
aware of, such as your prosecution by Trading Standards with the subsequent conviction, the interview 
and warning given to you by my predecessor Mr Thornton in January 2020 my advice to Mr Lloyd was 
that he should consider using his authority under Section 37 of the Act to change the DPS as repeated 
complaints could lead to a review of the Premises License by the Licensing Authority. The Licensing 
Authority expects the PLH to be active in ensuring that they are satisfied that the Licensing Objectives 
are being promoted. 

I do not intend to get into any further dialogue with you regarding the ‘rights and wrongs’ of this situation. 
In fact, under the Act Mr Lloyd does not need to have any reason to change the DPS, it is his prerogative 
as the PLH. 

Finally, I must point out that it is a criminal offence under the Licensing Act 2003 to carry on licensable 
activities from any premises in breach of the conditions of a premises licence. The maximum penalty on 
conviction for each breach is six months imprisonment and/or an unlimited fine.  

Yours faithfully 

Jon Bryant  
Senior Licensing Officer 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 71



From:
To:
Cc:

PL

Subject:
Date:

 TE email redacted 
Jon Bryant
DPS change confirmation 
12 January 2021 14:47:43

Tim,

I have received confirmation from Jon Bryant of your removal as DPS for the Fox and
understand he has also sent you confirmation of this change. I think his comments are fair
and I agree with the content of his letter.

I will be submitting my resignation as DPS this week meaning you cannot sell alcohol
until a suitable DPS replacement has been found. It is your responsibility to find such a
person, pay any costs associated with recruitment and for them performing this role. The
nominated person must be agreed by me as the Premises License Holder and Mid
Sussex Licensing Office. 

I will assist you where I can but suggest you contact Jon Bryant on how best to do this if
you are unsure.

Please do not continue to call me names as you did to my solicitor yesterday 11th January
where you called me a 'schizophrenic'. I consider this to be harassment and slander and
which if continues I will have no hesitation in pursuing through the appropriate legal
channels. I have now been given a crime number by PC Duly for your harassment of me
on 22nd March 2020 which is 47210005383. 

There  are no rights and wrongs to consider so do not make any more comments to me on
your views regarding your removal as the DPS. You were repeatedly warned by me,  Paul
Thornton and Jon Bryant of the consequences of failing to comply with the terms of the
Licensing Act 2003 and the jeopardy this put on the Premises Licence for the Fox.   

This matter is now concluded and I have nothing more to say on the subject. 

Paul

Premises License Holder and Landlord of The Fox Eating & Drinking House

-- 

Licence Premises Holder and Landlord of The Fox Eating & Drinking House

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 72

mailto:Jon.Bryant@midsussex.gov.uk


From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Jon Bryant
Tim Earley
Jane Cooper; Paul Lloyd 
Music Event At The Fox 
27 May 2021 11:15:00 
image001.jpg 
image002.png

Dear Tim

I have been advised by my colleagues in the Environmental Protection Team that they received a 
complaint in respect of a music event held in the area outside of The Fox at the weekend.

I can understand why the event was held outside due to the current Covid19 guidelines and 
restrictions however I need to point out that the Car Park and outside areas do not form part of 
the plan of the  licensed premises for The Fox. Therefore the performance of amplified live or 
recorded music in this area would require the application and grant of a Temporary Event Notice 
to permit the event. You are unable to take advantage of the exemption granted to licensed 
premises for the performance of amplified live music as this only applied to events held actually 
on the licensed area of the premises. In this case inside the premises.

It may be that you were unaware that the outside areas of the premises are not included in the 
premises  plan and therefore believed that there would not be a need for any further 
authorisations however I would point out that an offence is committed if a person carries on or 
attempts to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise than under and in 
accordance with an authorisation.

In this case there will be no further action other than this advice email, however going forward I 
would request that if you plan to hold any future events involving amplified music in the outside 
areas including the Car Park that the requisite Temporary Event Notices are applied for.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you wish to discuss this further.

Kind regards

Jon

Jon Bryant
Senior Licensing Officer
Mid Sussex District Council
Environmental Health

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 73

mailto:Jon.Bryant@midsussex.gov.uk




From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Jon Bryant
Tim Earley email redacted
k e- mail redacted; Paul Lloyd; licensing; 
WS_Licensing_WOR@sussex.pnn.police.uk RE: Application to Transfer Premises 
Licence
10 August 2021 16:37:12
image001.jpg
image002.png

Dear Tim,

Following on from my below email sent to you earlier today I am writing again in respect of the 
application submitted earlier today in your name to transfer the Premises Licence for The Fox 
PWA0060 to yourself.

I have yet to receive a response to my email, however I have since been informed that you do 
not have the consent of Mr Lloyd, the current Premises Licence holder, for the Premises Licence 
to be transferred to yourself. Additionally I have not been made aware of any steps that you 
have taken to obtain this consent and Mr Lloyd has informed me that he refuses to transfer the 
licence to you. Therefore under these circumstances I refuse to exempt you from the 
requirement to obtain the Premises Licence holders consent. I am also concerned that this 
application appears to have been submitted to the Licensing Authority without Mr Lloyd’s prior 
knowledge.

Section 44 of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) deals with the determination of an application to 
transfer a Premises Licence.

Under Subsection (3) the Authority must reject the application if the current holder of the 
Premises Licence does not consent to the transfer. I am satisfied that Mr Lloyd does not consent 
to this transfer.

Therefore I formerly give notice to you under Section 45 of the Act that your transfer application 
has been rejected. As stated earlier this is due to the fact that Mr Lloyd does not consent to this 
transfer. In accordance with Section 45(4)(b) a copy of this notice will also be given to the 
current holder of the Premises Licence, Mr Lloyd.

I will be sending you a letter to confirm the rejection of this application.

I will arrange for the refund of the application fee.

Kind regards

Jon Bryant

Jon Bryant
Senior Licensing Officer
Mid Sussex District Council
Environmental Health
01444 477428
redacted

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 74

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:WS_Licensing_WOR@sussex.pnn.police.uk




jon.bryant@midsussex.gov.uk

www.midsussex.gov.uk

MSDClogo

‘Working together for a better Mid Sussex’

From: Jon Bryant 
Sent: 10 August 2021 12:34
To: Tim Earley <email redacted>
Cc: k - email redcated
Subject: Application to Transfer Premises Licence
Importance: High

Dear Tim

I have received this morning an application for the transfer of the Premises Licence for The Fox, 
PWA0060, to yourself.

At present I have not received the consent for the transfer from Mr Lloyd, the current Premises 
Licence holder, and therefore currently the transfer cannot take effect (Section 44 (3) Licensing 
Act 2003) until I have received that consent.

Please could you email the consent form to licensing@midsussex.gov.uk

Many thanks

Kind regards

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 75

mailto:jon.bryant@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C85a16fb240164b23b17008d95c14b8b8%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637642066323528077%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=t74QFDVqOWQTKPQSMa%2FQknRN4DarTX9lPHmkEtWhibE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C85a16fb240164b23b17008d95c14b8b8%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637642066323528077%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=t74QFDVqOWQTKPQSMa%2FQknRN4DarTX9lPHmkEtWhibE%3D&reserved=0
mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk


Contact: Jon Bryant   Our Ref: PWA0060 Date: 11th August 2021 
Direct Line: 01444 477076 Your Ref:  
E-Mail: jon.bryant@midsussex.gov.uk

Mr Earley 
The Fox 
Highbrook Lane 
West Hoathly 
East Grinstead 
West Sussex 
RH19 4PJ 

Dear Mr Earley, 

Application for Transfer of Premises Licence - The Fox 

Notice in Pursuance of Section 45 Licensing Act 2003 

I am writing to you in respect of the online application to transfer the Premises Licence for The Fox, 
Highbrook Lane, West Hoathly, East Grinstead, West Sussex, RH19 4PJ, Licence number PWA0060 
from Mr Paul Lloyd to yourself that was received by the Licensing Authority yesterday (10th August 
2021). 

The determination of an application to Transfer a Premises Licence is made under Section 44 of the 
Licensing Act. An application to transfer a Premises Licence may be made only with the consent of the 
holder of the Premises Licence. The Licensing Authority must exempt the applicant from the requirement 
to obtain the holder’s consent if the applicant shows to the authority’s satisfaction that he has taken all 
reasonable steps to obtain that consent. 

Under section 4(7) the Licensing Authority refuses to exempt you from the requirement to obtain the 
Premises Licence holders consent for the transfer of the Licence. The reasons for this are: 

1. We have not been made of any attempt by yourself to seek this consent. The current Premises
Licence holder lives adjacent to the licensed premises.
2. Mr Lloyd has confirmed in writing to the Licensing Authority that he does not consent to this transfer
and was unaware of this application.

I am therefore satisfied that you have not taken any reasonable steps to obtain this consent. 

Under Section 45 of the Licensing Act the Licensing Authority gives notice that your application to 
transfer the Premises Licence is rejected. 

A copy of this notice will be sent separately to Mr Lloyd as per Section 45(4)(b) of the Act. 

Yours faithfully 

Jon Bryant  
Senior Licensing Officer 

Oaklands Road 
Haywards Heath 
West Sussex 
RH16 1SS

Switchboard: 01444 458166 
Fax: 01444 477461 

DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1 
www.midsussex.gov.uk 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 76



Dear Licensing Team 

Licensing consultation - The Fox Eating & Drinking House, Highbrook Lane, West Hoathly 

LI/21/0881 

SR/21/4148 

I object to this application. There are 2 main reasons for my objection. The first is related to the 
prevention of public nuisance and the second that I have no confidence in the applicants’ intent or 
ability to uphold the licensing objectives. 

The first is that, in my opinion, the applicants have demonstrated that they are not able to meet the 
prevention of public nuisance licensing objective. Over recent years there have been many 
complaints of noise brought to the attention of the Environmental Protection Team. In the past two 
years there have been 8 complaints of noise, predominantly loud music, from The Fox, even while 
there have been restrictions on The Fox’s ability to open during the Covid pandemic. Visits by 
officers from the Environmental Protection Team have corroborated the noise complaints and the 
impact that the pub is having on the local community. Temporary event notices had been notified 
for 3 events at The Fox by Mr Earley on 26th June 2021, 3rd July 2021 and 24th July 2021 for music 
events. Following discussions with the applicant about the necessity to control music noise levels to 
prevent public nuisance, officer visits at the first 2 events demonstrated that insufficient control of 
noise levels were having a detrimental impact on nearby residents and it was clear that our advice 
had been disregarded. This was raised with Mr Earley and it was emphasised that future TENS would 
be opposed.  

This leads to my second reason. It is our view that the applicant has demonstrated that he has been 
unwilling to manage the activities to prevent local impacts. Back in early 2020, after a number of 
noise complaints had been received by the Environmental Protection Team, the Licensing Officer 
and an Environmental Protection Team Officer met with Mr Earley and discussed the recent 
complaints. Recordings of the noise from the pub that had been experienced by a nearby resident in 
the early hours of the morning were played back to Mr Earley. At the time Mr Earley accepted that 
that the noise level was unreasonable and it was advised that future TENS would only be permitted 
if he could demonstrate that he could manage the activities at the pub in a way that prevented 
public nuisance. Subsequent to this meeting and to Mr Earley’s agreement with this position, there 
have been further complaints of noise.  

There have been a number of complainants who have indicated that they are scared to give their 
name and address for fear of reprisals. We occasionally get this in our dealings with complaints from 
the public. However, the number of complainants that have expressed their concern is unusual. This 
has been evidenced by our own department’s interaction with Mr Earley. In June 2021 he was rude 
to one of our support team staff and had been confrontational in an email to my officer about 
complaints from residents. I considered it necessary at the time to put myself as the point of contact 

APPENDIX 6

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 77



for Mr Earley on environmental protection matters to protect my team from being exposed to this 
abuse. The telephone conversations that triggered this action by me were in response to legitimate 
investigations into public nuisance on account of excessive noise. Mr Earley’s response was to 
counteract these investigations by making spurious complaints about noise from church bells, noise 
from people clapping for the NHS each week and noise from tree felling from an unknown location.  

For the above reasons I object to this application. 

Adam Dracott 

Team Leader – Environmental Protection 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 78



From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Adam Dracott
Jon Bryant
licensing; Yvonne Leddy; Michael Bateman 
RE: Representation The Fox
17 September 2021 09:59:38

Hi Jon

I have considered the response from Ms Kacy to our representation. It is difficult to see how Mr 
Earley would not be intrinsically involved in the running of the pub and how he would not be a 
controlling influence in the management of the pub. So my representation stands.

Regards

Adam

Adam Dracott
Team Leader – Environmental Protection

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 79








SR/19/4829 NOICORR 

# 
Contact: Jane Cooper Our Ref: SR/19/4829 Date: 16 December 2019 
Direct Line: 01444 477437 Your Ref: 
EMail: jane.cooper@midsussex.gov.uk 

Ms Kacy and Mr Earley 
The Fox 
Highbrook Lane 
West Hoathly 
East Grinstead 
West Sussex 
RH19 4PJ 

Dear Ms Kacy and Mr Earley, 

Re: Alleged Noise Nuisance from The Fox, Highbrook Lane, West Hoathly, East Grinstead, 
West Sussex, RH19 4PJ. 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 

This department has recently received complaints alleging noise nuisance from loud music being played 
at your property. I am contacting you to make you aware that complaints have been received so that you 
can consider whether you may be causing a disturbance unknowingly. 

For your information, it may be useful to know this Council’s policy on noise complaints. 
Mid Sussex District Council is under a legal duty to investigate all complaints about noise. When a 
complaint is received: - 

• The complainant completes a noise diary detailing the events that are causing disturbance to
them.

• If further investigation is justified we may install noise monitoring equipment in the complainant’s
property to record the dates, times and sound levels of the alleged noise nuisance. Officers may
also visit to assess the allegations.

If further investigation provides evidence that a statutory nuisance is being caused, then this Council is 
legally obliged to serve an Abatement Notice on the person responsible for the nuisance. Such notices 
can remain in force indefinitely. Any breach of the conditions of this Notice could result in prosecution in 
a magistrate’s court and a fine upon summary conviction. The Council recognises that absolute quiet 
cannot be expected, but neither is there freedom to make as much noise as one pleases and will 
consider the balance of rights of all the individuals involved when deciding on the most appropriate 
course of action. 

I strongly recommend that you to contact this department to discuss the current situation and therefore 
prevent the need for formal action. 

Yours faithfully 

Jane Cooper 
Environmental Protection Officer 
Environmental Protection 

Oaklands Road 
Haywards Heath 
West Sussex 
RH16 1SS

Switchboard: 01444 458166 

DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1 
www.midsussex.gov.uk 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 80



Contact: Mrs Jane Cooper   Our Ref: SR/20/0053  Date:16 January 2020 
Direct Line: 01444 477437 Your Ref: 
Email: jane.cooper@midsussex.gov.uk 

Mr T Earley 
The Fox 
Highbrook Lane 
West Hoathly  
West Sussex 
RH19 4PJ  

Dear Mr Earley 

The Fox, Highbrook Lane, West Hoathly. 
Environmental Protection Act 1990  

I refer to our recent meeting to discuss noise issues relating to the Fox Public House. This department 
has received several complaints regarding disturbance caused by noise from customers using the 
outside area of the pub and due to loud music emanating from the premises, particularly late at night. 

During our meeting you listened to sound recordings made in a neighbouring property and you agreed 
that in future you will monitor noise generated by customers using the pub’s outside seating area 
together with music played on the premises, and to take necessary action to mitigate disturbance to 
neighbours. Should you decide to modify the premises to improve sound insulation and reduce noise 
break out, I would urge you to seek advice from a suitably qualified, independent acoustic consultant 
before carrying out any work.  

As discussed, Mid Sussex District Council is under a legal duty to investigate all complaints concerning 
noise and is obliged to serve an Abatement Notice if the investigation provides evidence that a statutory 
nuisance is being caused. Such notices can remain in force indefinitely and any breach of the conditions 
of the Notice could result in prosecution in a magistrate’s court and a fine upon summary conviction.  

The Council wants to support local businesses and recognises that absolute quiet cannot be expected 
however, residents have the right to enjoy their properties. People living close to a pub might expect 
some level of disturbance created by customers when arriving or leaving the premises however, it would 
be unreasonable if arguing, shouting and music generated on the premises were audible inside people’s 
homes. The Council will consider the balance of rights of all parties involved when deciding on the most 
appropriate course of action in the future. I hope that by bringing this matter to your attention, formal 
action be avoided.  

Should you require further information or advice, please contact me. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 81

mailto:jane.cooper@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:jane.cooper@midsussex.gov.uk


Yours sincerely 

Mrs Jane Cooper 
Environmental Health Officer 
Mid Sussex District Council 
Environmental Health 
Tel:  +44 (0)1444 477437 
Email: jane.cooper@midsussex.gov.uk 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 82



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Jon Bryant
licensing
FW: Objection to PLH application for the Fox Pub, West Hoathly
17 September 2021 14:17:58
IMG-20210907-WA0000.jpg
IMG-20210907-WA0001.jpg
IMG-20210907-WA0002.jpg
Very final text.jpg
DRAFT Letter to Dean Wilson LLP.docx
The Fox - rent letter.docx

FAO: The Mid Sussex Licencing Team

Dear Sirs,

I am writing to formally object to Ms Claire Kacy being awarded Premises Licence Holder at the 
Fox Eating & Drinking House, West Hoathly.

I am the freehold owner of the named property, a former Inspector of the Hong Kong Police and 
former PC in the Metropolitan police. I have managed and owned public houses for over 30 years 
and I am fully aware of the roles and responsibilities of the Licencing Act 2003. I am currently the 
Premises Licence Holder for the above premises and was the former Designated Premises 
Supervisor (DPS) until I stepped down from this role 16th August 2021 in part because Ms Kacy 
was making it difficult for me to perform my role.

My objections are based on the 4 principles of  the Licensing Act; 

1. The prevention of crime and disorder

Claire Kacy has a lack of understanding of the Licencing Act. She has made several attempts to 
prevent me from entering the premises in my capacity as both the PLH and DPS and from 
speaking to the staff. This is supported in a letter from my solicitor dated (attached) when she 
last tried to restrict my access and also in an email she sent to me via my wife's email address 
20th August 2020 -also attached. She has no former experience of running a public house, as she 
is a former beautician, and whilst she has worked at the pub since 2014, this has been primarily 
responsible for decor and administration. 

Despite referring to herself as the owner of The Fox (as per the social media post attached), she 
is not the named leaseholder and has not invested any of her own money into the purchase of 
the lease. She has no legal authority and my dealings are only with Mr Early only who is the 
named leaseholder and tenant. Despite this she continues to claim she is the owner and 
demonstrates her irrationality and understanding of reality.

APPENDIX 7

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 83

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk











Page 1 of 1		17/09/2021











Our ref:		SE1/ET2/LLO723.1



Your ref:		



Please ask for:	Stephen Eccles



Date:		18 August 2021





		

Dean Wilson LLP Solicitors

Ridgeland House

165 Dyke Road

Hove

East Sussex

BN3 1TL













Dear Sirs



The Fox Eating and Drinking House, West Hoathly



Thank you for your letter 11 August 2021.



Your letter does not reflect the Licensing Act 2003 framework and objectives.  You state its unnecessary for our client to be the DPS but then go on to say our client in resigning the role of DPS will prevent The Fox from trading and is therefore a derogation from the lease.  Plainly these statements conflict, and they are incorrect in any event, which we will explain below.



Background

Our client is the premises license holder (PLH) of The Fox, and was the DPS whilst personally operating The Fox.  



Your client entered the premises on a tenancy at will and was subsequently granted the lease and became DPS at that time.



In 2016, our client as PLH was called to the pub by your client to mediate between Miss Kacey and your client, each alleging that the other was drinking too much, smoking cannabis, and generally creating havoc.   As the PLH, our client gave both parties a stern warning.  Despite this, our client understands drinking to excess and fights between them continued and the local police were called to instances at the pub.  Our client understands that eventually Miss Kacey took out a restraining order (injunction presumably) against Mr Earley who was subsequently arrested for breaching it and take to Crawley Police Station. 



Mr Earley was found guilty at Worthing Magistrates Court in 2018 with regard to breach food hygiene regulations and fined £1,600 (this would be a breach of the Licensing Objective - To Promote Public Safety).



Licensing offer Paul Thornton gave a number of verbal warnings to Mr Earley with regard to late night drinking at The Fox.  Our client also received such verbal warnings in his position as premise license holder.



During lockdown in summer 2020, Police again attended The Fox on two occasions due to allegations of breach of Covid regulations by local residents (Breach of Public Safety Objective).



While under the influence of alcohol (in our client’s opinion) both your client and Miss Kacey sent abusive text messages to our client and also to a former customer, these were again reported to the Police (Breach of Objective - Prevention of Crime and Disorder and breach of The Prevention of Public Nuisance).



As a result of the abusive texts, Miss Kacey was cautioned by PC Adam Duly in November 2020.  Our client does not believe that your client took any action against her in his capacity as employer or DPS.  As Paul Thornton commented to our client, the role of the DPS is to prevent chaos, not to create it (Breach of Objective – The Prevention of Crime and Disorder, and Prevention of Public Nuisance).



Christmas 2019/2020, there were so many complaints from local residents with regard to noise that the EHO supplied local residents with sound monitoring equipment.  A warning letter was sent by Paul Thornton about noise and late drinking at this point in time.  Jane Cooper of the Environmental Health Department has told our client that any application for music events at The Fox will be opposed by them due to the noise complaints over the summer of 2021.   The Police were called in summer 2021 by local residents complaining of noise (Breach of Objectives – Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Prevention of Public Nuisance).



Licensing Act 2003

The Licensing Act 2003 and Section 182 Guidance combined with the Mid-Sussex Statement of Licensing Policy make up the framework within which The Fox operates.  



The PLH has ultimate responsibility for promoting the four licensing objectives which as you know are:



1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder;

2. The Prevention of Public Nuisance;

3. The Protection of Children; and

4. The Protection of Public Safety.



As can be seen from the above, two of these licensing objectives have been routinely breached by your client’s operation of the premises.



It is the above that led our client to appoint himself as DPS earlier this year in an attempt to preserve the license and the viability of The Fox Public House.



Since becoming DPS, our client has been frustrated in his attempts to exercise control over the premises as is required by the DPS, in particular:



1. Miss Kacey, your client’s employee, has attempted to prevent our client’s exercise of his functions as DPS, for example, see her email 10 August 2021 which stated “yourself (or your girlfriend) are not welcome to enter…. And then only if necessary for insurance purposes….).



2. There are various occasions when your client has objected to our client being on the premises, on one of those occasions, both parties called the Police.



3. On 21 July 2021, there was yet again late drinking at The Fox.



4. As previously stated, the EHO Jane Cooper has told our client no music events will be permitted given the complaints over noise which occurred in July 2021 and in particular, the incident on 24 July 2021.



All the above are contrary to the LA03 objectives.  



You have questioned why our client was at The Fox on 1 August 2021.  Our client was there in exercising his functions as DPS in order to promote the licensing objectives.   It is an undisputable fact, that a DPS cannot exercise the function with unrestricted access to the premises.



The DPS Position

Your client may nominate a DPS and if our client as PLH is satisfied they will promote the LA03 Objectives, our client will consent to their appointment.



Plainly, neither your client nor his employee Miss Kacey are suitable given the above matters.  



If your client does not nominate a suitable DPS, our client may be willing to take the role again but only on conditions that will need to be strictly adhered to.



Quiet Enjoyment/Derogation from Grant

Our client has done nothing to interfere with quiet enjoyment or to derogate from the grant.  Indeed rather the opposite, our client has done his best to facilitate the continued functioning of The Fox.  Should the premises license be reviewed or withdrawn by the licensing authority, that will be the end of The Fox.  Our client’s efforts are aimed at ensuring that the premises license is not lost.  That is why he became the DPS, the incidents referred to in this letter have made it impossible for him to fulfil the function hence the resignation.  Such cannot possibly be an interference with quiet enjoyment or derogation from grant.  



The Lease – Alterations re Decoration

Our client believes alterations may have been carried out without his consent, all rights are reserved in respect of this.



The redecoration covenant is plainly breached, on your client’s own admission the redecoration was not done in May 2019 when it should have been.  This was well before the pandemic and therefore the pandemic cannot be an excuse for this breach.



Please ensure your client is aware that any physical alterations to the premises require our client’s written consent.



The Future

Your client must comply with the lease and in particular the redecoration clause forthwith.



Your client must appoint a DPS who has unrestricted access to the premises to ensure Licensing Act 03 Objectives are promoted.



Your client should consider the position of Miss Kacey given her role in the breach of the Licensing Objectives and in making our client’s continued positions as DPS impossible.  On this issue, our client as PLH does of course have the right to bar her from the premises and would be more than justified in doing so based on the incidents which have occurred so far.



If your client would like our client to reappoint himself as DPS, please let us know and our client will then consider the strict conditions that he would take the appointment on.  Compliance with the conditions would be a prerequisite and any breach would lead to our client’s resignation.  



Yours faithfully

{TFBDigSig: USER='TFB'}

Pinney Talfourd LLP
















The Fox - Business Owners: Timothy Early/Claire Kacy

Pub Payments



				kacy.c@sky.com <kacy.c@sky.com>







		Aug 10, 2020, 5:45 PM

		

		





				to themanatthefox@yahoo.co.uk, me









		





Let’s be realistic here Paul!

Your emails are full of slander, lies, and threats! What do you expect us to reply? I can tell you Tim’s replies are not sad, whiny or moaning! They are based on the true facts of the situation we are in due to the pandemic.

Not sure who your guy is at Christies Paul, maybe I should track him down, I'm pretty good at that as well! Our guy at Florets says otherwise.

This is what’s going to happen from our end:

31st August you will be paid £2,400 plus buildings insurance, and this will continue on the last day of every Month, as per lease, depending on any other government rulings concerning our industry.

£5,400 deferred rent – payment plan will start in May 2021, payments dependant on turnover, I will ask our solicitor to draft a plan that suits.

Anymore threatening, demeaning emails, what so ever will be classed as harassment, and will be dealt with by our solicitor, whether in regard to Tim’s or my personal circumstances or the running of our business.

Yourself (or your girlfriend) are not welcome to enter The Fox, unless a minimum of 24 hours notice is given, and only then if it is deemed necessary for buildings insurance purposes.

If this is not acceptable to you, then so be it. You continue with your solicitor route.

One thing I will say is, I have every single correspondence saved or recorded, weather it be email, phone conversations (recorded) or face to face (recorded) all filed, even going back to 14th November 2014, when you persisted with numerous phone calls and text messages,  threatening me with eviction. Also recorded the mobile phone conversation of you telling me that I should let Tim hit me, one good thing came from having a stepfather whom was a Detective Inspector.

So there you go, there’s my threat to you. Do what you will.



Claire Kacy 

The Fox Eating and Drinking House


Highbrook Lane
West Hoathly
RH19 4PJ



t/ 01342 810644

http://www.thefoxwesthoathly.co.uk/



				Paul Lloyd <themanatthefox@yahoo.co.uk>







		Aug 11, 2020, 8:02 AM

		

		





				to me









		





Clair



You are not the named lease holder for the Fox. My solicitor has advised I am not required to communicate with you in any regard. 



What your business relationship is with Tim Earley is your concern but I note a payment plan has been set up for the backdated rent. In addition that after 6 years of trading Tim has eventually set up a DD to pay the rent on the due date for the correct amount. 



Paul 



image1.jpeg



image2.gif



image3.png





Ms Kacy has also been present when police have attended the pub due to complaints of noise
and breach of Covid and in these instances made no effort to deal with either of these issues
when Mr Early was working in the kitchen or to contact me as the PLH.

2. Public safety

When Mr Early was arrested in 2016 for breaching a restraining order placed on him by Ms Kacy
in the private quarters above the pub where they were both living at the time, Paul Thornton,
Mid Sussex Licencing Officer at the time, commented to me that the DPS (at the time being Mr
Early) and Ms Kacy, who assists him in the pub are supposed to prevent havoc rather than cause
it. 

There is a potential risk to public safety as Ms Kacy has never demonstrated to me knowledge of
the Licencing Act 2003. She states in her social media post attached (dated 30th August 2021)
that as the DPS I could have simply transferred it to them for £23 and the pub could have
continued trading. This implies she believes the DPS and PLH roles are simply administrative
pieces of paper and shows no understanding of the roles and responsibilities involved in this
position.  In addition, I have witnessed her drunk on the premises during trading hours when I
spent a night at the pub in 2019 and a band was playing. Mr Early told me at the time that when
she starts drinking she cannot stop.   

3. The prevention of public nuisance

Claire Kacy has previously sent me abusive texts, calling me names such as 'twat', 'prick' and
including finger emojis, when under the influence of alcohol. I have attached an example from
25th May 2020. Ms Kacy was also cautioned by the police in November 2020 after sending
abusive texts to a former employee and customer of the pub. She was only cautioned as the
recipient of the texts did not want to formally press charges. The officer in charge of the case is
PC Adam Duly of Sussex Constabulary.  In addition, a local Sharpethorne resident also received
abusive messages from Ms Kacy which can be obtained if required.

There has typically been a pub manager employed but often Ms Kacy takes control of
events when out front drinking and socialising. Last summer there were  complaints of noise and
loud music but Ms Kacy did not think to control the situation. In fact, she told me complaints had
been made by local residents and when I suggested the musician should then be asked to play
less loud, she did not see why they should and did not understand the problem. 

Since I stepped down as DPS, Ms Kacy has also posted on social media derogatory comments
about me and the Licencing laws in general and which I attach for reference.

4. The protection of children from harm

For the reasons stated above, I would be concerned about Ms Kacy being fit to adequately
ensure the protection of children from harm.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 84



In summary

Upto this point, I have been resistant to formally object to either Mr Early or Ms Kacy being
named Premises Licence Holder in order to preserve the peace and prevent more threats,
intimidation, abuse and anti-social behaviour from either of them. In December 2020, Mr Early
and I had a confrontation on the premises car park after he started filming me on my private
property.  

As recently as 25th August I was visited by two police officers  at approximately 10.45pm in
regard to a call they received from Mr Early alleging my daughter was unsafe in my house
screaming and which my wife and I were able to prove was not the case. 

When I have informed Mr Early about Ms Kacy's behaviour in the past, he has refused to act
upon it and is aggressive and confrontational. In the past, he has contacted the police accusing
me of harassment and for which I have been able to provide evidence to show this is not the
case.  I understand from a local resident that Ms Kacy also posted another derogatory post about
me on facebook but this has since been taken down.

I also enclose a copy of an email she sent to me 10th August 2020 which demonstrates
another example of where Ms Kacy clearly does not understand the role of the PLH by trying to
bar me and an example of her abusive tone. As the freeholder I need to have a professional and
reasonable working relationship with the PLH. Although Ms Kacy does not have a legal
relationship with me and I am the incumbent PLH and is a role which I have not stepped down
from, I do not believe it would be possible to work with her and could lead to further issues
impacting the 4 principles of the Licencing Act 2003. 

I take the role and office of PLH seriously and despite the above have decided to make these
objections as I have no confidence that Ms Kacy is or would make a suitable  Premises Licence
Holder of the pub. 

Best regards

Paul Lloyd

Attachments

Facebook post 30/8/21
Texts 25/05/21
My solictor's Letter 13/8/21
Copy of email from Ms Kacy 10/8/20

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 85



Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 86



Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 87



Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 88



Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Our ref: SE1/ET2/LLO723.1 

Your ref: 

Please ask for: Stephen Eccles 

Date: 18 August 2021 

Dean Wilson LLP Solicitors 
Ridgeland House 
165 Dyke Road 
Hove 
East Sussex 
BN3 1TL 

Dear Sirs 

The Fox Eating and Drinking House, West Hoathly 

Thank you for your letter 11 August 2021. 

Your letter does not reflect the Licensing Act 2003 framework and objectives.  You state its unnecessary 
for our client to be the DPS but then go on to say our client in resigning the role of DPS will prevent The 
Fox from trading and is therefore a derogation from the lease.  Plainly these statements conflict, and they 
are incorrect in any event, which we will explain below. 

Background 
Our client is the premises license holder (PLH) of The Fox, and was the DPS whilst personally operating 
The Fox.   

Your client entered the premises on a tenancy at will and was subsequently granted the lease and became 
DPS at that time. 

In 2016, our client as PLH was called to the pub by your client to mediate between Miss Kacey and your 
client, each alleging that the other was drinking too much, smoking cannabis, and generally creating 
havoc.   As the PLH, our client gave both parties a stern warning.  Despite this, our client understands 
drinking to excess and fights between them continued and the local police were called to instances at the 
pub.  Our client understands that eventually Miss Kacey took out a restraining order (injunction 
presumably) against Mr Earley who was subsequently arrested for breaching it and take to Crawley Police 
Station.  

Mr Earley was found guilty at Worthing Magistrates Court in 2018 with regard to breach food hygiene 
regulations and fined £1,600 (this would be a breach of the Licensing Objective - To Promote Public 
Safety). 

Licensing offer Paul Thornton gave a number of verbal warnings to Mr Earley with regard to late night 
drinking at The Fox.  Our client also received such verbal warnings in his position as premise license holder. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 91



Page 2 of 4 28/09/2021 

During lockdown in summer 2020, Police again attended The Fox on two occasions due to allegations of 
breach of Covid regulations by local residents (Breach of Public Safety Objective). 

While under the influence of alcohol (in our client’s opinion) both your client and Miss Kacey sent abusive 
text messages to our client and also to a former customer, these were again reported to the Police (Breach 
of Objective - Prevention of Crime and Disorder and breach of The Prevention of Public Nuisance). 

As a result of the abusive texts, Miss Kacey was cautioned by PC Adam Duly in November 2020.  Our client 
does not believe that your client took any action against her in his capacity as employer or DPS.  As Paul 
Thornton commented to our client, the role of the DPS is to prevent chaos, not to create it (Breach of 
Objective – The Prevention of Crime and Disorder, and Prevention of Public Nuisance). 

Christmas 2019/2020, there were so many complaints from local residents with regard to noise that the 
EHO supplied local residents with sound monitoring equipment.  A warning letter was sent by Paul 
Thornton about noise and late drinking at this point in time.  Jane Cooper of the Environmental Health 
Department has told our client that any application for music events at The Fox will be opposed by them 
due to the noise complaints over the summer of 2021.   The Police were called in summer 2021 by local 
residents complaining of noise (Breach of Objectives – Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Prevention of 
Public Nuisance). 

Licensing Act 2003 
The Licensing Act 2003 and Section 182 Guidance combined with the Mid-Sussex Statement of Licensing 
Policy make up the framework within which The Fox operates.   

The PLH has ultimate responsibility for promoting the four licensing objectives which as you know are: 

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder;
2. The Prevention of Public Nuisance;
3. The Protection of Children; and
4. The Protection of Public Safety.

As can be seen from the above, two of these licensing objectives have been routinely breached by your 
client’s operation of the premises. 

It is the above that led our client to appoint himself as DPS earlier this year in an attempt to preserve the 
license and the viability of The Fox Public House. 

Since becoming DPS, our client has been frustrated in his attempts to exercise control over the premises 
as is required by the DPS, in particular: 

1. Miss Kacey, your client’s employee, has attempted to prevent our client’s exercise of his functions 
as DPS, for example, see her email 10 August 2021 which stated “yourself (or your girlfriend) are
not welcome to enter…. And then only if necessary for insurance purposes….). 

2. There are various occasions when your client has objected to our client being on the premises,
on one of those occasions, both parties called the Police.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 92



Page 3 of 4 28/09/2021 

3. On 21 July 2021, there was yet again late drinking at The Fox.

4. As previously stated, the EHO Jane Cooper has told our client no music events will be permitted
given the complaints over noise which occurred in July 2021 and in particular, the incident on 24
July 2021.

All the above are contrary to the LA03 objectives.  

You have questioned why our client was at The Fox on 1 August 2021.  Our client was there in exercising 
his functions as DPS in order to promote the licensing objectives.   It is an undisputable fact, that a DPS 
cannot exercise the function with unrestricted access to the premises. 

The DPS Position 
Your client may nominate a DPS and if our client as PLH is satisfied they will promote the LA03 Objectives, 
our client will consent to their appointment. 

Plainly, neither your client nor his employee Miss Kacey are suitable given the above matters.  

If your client does not nominate a suitable DPS, our client may be willing to take the role again but only 
on conditions that will need to be strictly adhered to. 

Quiet Enjoyment/Derogation from Grant 
Our client has done nothing to interfere with quiet enjoyment or to derogate from the grant.  Indeed 
rather the opposite, our client has done his best to facilitate the continued functioning of The Fox.  Should 
the premises license be reviewed or withdrawn by the licensing authority, that will be the end of The Fox. 
Our client’s efforts are aimed at ensuring that the premises license is not lost.  That is why he became the 
DPS, the incidents referred to in this letter have made it impossible for him to fulfil the function hence 
the resignation.  Such cannot possibly be an interference with quiet enjoyment or derogation from grant. 

The Lease – Alterations re Decoration 
Our client believes alterations may have been carried out without his consent, all rights are reserved in 
respect of this. 

The redecoration covenant is plainly breached, on your client’s own admission the redecoration was not 
done in May 2019 when it should have been.  This was well before the pandemic and therefore the 
pandemic cannot be an excuse for this breach. 

Please ensure your client is aware that any physical alterations to the premises require our client’s written 
consent. 

The Future 
Your client must comply with the lease and in particular the redecoration clause forthwith. 

Your client must appoint a DPS who has unrestricted access to the premises to ensure Licensing Act 03 
Objectives are promoted. 

Your client should consider the position of Miss Kacey given her role in the breach of the Licensing 
Objectives and in making our client’s continued positions as DPS impossible.  On this issue, our client as 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 93



Page 4 of 4 28/09/2021 

PLH does of course have the right to bar her from the premises and would be more than justified in doing 
so based on the incidents which have occurred so far. 

If your client would like our client to reappoint himself as DPS, please let us know and our client will then 
consider the strict conditions that he would take the appointment on.  Compliance with the conditions 
would be a prerequisite and any breach would lead to our client’s resignation.   

Yours faithfully 

{TFBDigSig: USER='TFB'} 

Pinney Talfourd LLP 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 94



The Fox - Business Owners: Timothy Early/Claire Kacy 
Pub Payments 

 

K>email redacted Aug 10, 
2020, 5:45 

 
 PM 

to email redacted

 

 Let’s be realistic here Paul! 

Your emails are full of slander, lies, and threats! What do you expect us to reply? I can tell you Tim’s replies are not sad, 
whiny or moaning! They are based on the true facts of the situation we are in due to the pandemic. 
Not sure who your guy is at Christies Paul, maybe I should track him down, I'm pretty good at that as well! Our guy at Florets 
says otherwise. 
This is what’s going to happen from our end: 
31st August you will be paid £2,400 plus buildings insurance, and this will continue on the last day of every Month, as 
per lease, depending on any other government rulings concerning our industry. 
£5,400 deferred rent – payment plan will start in May 2021, payments dependant on turnover, I will ask our solicitor to draft 
a plan that suits. 
Anymore threatening, demeaning emails, what so ever will be classed as harassment, and will be dealt with by our 
solicitor, whether in regard to Tim’s or my personal circumstances or the running of our business. 
Yourself (or your girlfriend) are not welcome to enter The Fox, unless a minimum of 24 hours notice is given, and only then if 
it is deemed necessary for buildings insurance purposes. 
If this is not acceptable to you, then so be it. You continue with your solicitor route. 
One thing I will say is, I have every single correspondence saved or recorded, weather it be email, phone 
conversations (recorded) or face to face (recorded) all filed, even going back to 14th November 2014, when you persisted 
with numerous phone calls and text messages,  threatening me with eviction. Also recorded the mobile phone conversation 
of you telling me that I should let Tim hit me, one good thing came from having a stepfather whom was a Detective 
Inspector. 
So there you go, there’s my threat to you. Do what you will. 

Claire Kacy 
The Fox Eating and Drinking House 

Highbrook Lane 
West Hoathly 
RH19 4PJ 

t/redacted 
http://www.thefoxwesthoathly.co.uk/ 

 

Paul Lloyd <email redacted Aug 11, 
2020, 8:02 

AM 

 
 

to me 

 
 

Clair 

You are not the named lease holder for the Fox. My solicitor has advised I am not required to 
communicate with you in any regard.  

What your business relationship is with Tim Earley is your concern but I note a payment plan has 
been set up for the backdated rent. In addition that after 6 years of trading Tim has eventually set up a 
DD to pay the rent on the due date for the correct amount.  

Paul 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 95

http://www.thefoxwesthoathly.co.uk/
http://www.thefoxwesthoathly.co.uk/


Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 96



From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

PL - email redacted
licensing
Jon Bryant
FOX PUB PLH APPLICATION BY TIM EARLEY 
17 September 2021 15:20:19
IMG_3104.jpeg

With reference to the application by Tim Earley to be the PLH at the Fox pub west hoathly 
RH19 4 PJ

I had previously emailed in to say I would not object to Tim Earley application to be the 
PLH. 

I made this decision to avoid further confrontation with Mr Earley as we are neighbours, 
and there have been violent verbal confrontations between us one reported to Police in 
December 2020. I have been provoked and harassed to fry and get me to move away at one 
point, the incident where  Police were called  I lost my cool, my actions were not in 
keeping with my role as PLH.  

However considering the disinformation being circulated on the internet this week,  posted 
on Facebook jointly by Tim and Clair Kacey I now do object to the appointment of Tim 
Earley as PLH. 

Mr Earley I can say in my previous experience as a Police Officer has never in my opinion 
been interested in upholding any of the 4 licensing objectives laid down by Mid Sussex 
Council. 

In fact Earley ignores the drinking up time rules, as recently as 21st July he still had 10 to 
12 people drinking in the pub, see attached photograph. 

As evidence of my statement it’s also fair to say when Police are routinely called back time 
after time  to the same premises such as the Fox it’s usually due to the fact that the culprits 
involved are routinely ignoring the law. 

As Paul Thornton said to me on many occasions Tim Earley when given advice seems to 
take it onboard but then ignores it at a later time. 

Mr Earley sees the licensing act and the prevention of public nuisance as a joke. The 
licensing objectives routinely ignored. 

Paul Lloyd freeholder and landlord Fox Pub

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 97

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:Jon.Bryant@midsussex.gov.uk



Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 98



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

PL - email redacted
licensing
Fox Pub Application by Tim Earley to be DPS 
17 September 2021 15:42:50
IMG_3110.MOV

Ref my last email sent at 15.20 today. 

The attached photograph was taken at 11.29 drinking continued until past 1145 as I have
video evidence. 

Routinely breaking the drinking up rules under the licensing act 2003

I attach the video this time. 

Paul Lloyd 

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 99

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Foverview.mail.yahoo.com%2F%3F.src%3DiOS&data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cfeeb2a56e9834c98cd3208d979e96b57%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637674865703396607%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=ToV2VTA62XLG4%2BWWp1zWU%2Bwwr%2FAIR6Q6mzXMenaYulU%3D&reserved=0



This page is intentionally left blank



From:
To:

Pl - email redacted
 Jon Bryant

Subject: Harassment fromTim Earley Objection to his application to be PLH of the Fox.
Date: 22 September 2021 08:51:07

Dear Jon

I wish to register further incidents of harassment to me by Tim Ealey this week in
contravention of one of the licensing objectives, Mr Earley is himself creating a public
nuisance. 

Last evening and at 5 am in the morning today , Mr Earley sent messages to my personal
phone and email account. Refusing to use my official business address and email account.
This is harassment. 

Overnight Mr Earley has proposed to me twice to accept as DPS his wine supplier Paul
Oliver of Oliver’s wines on the basis that he lives locally is a respected businessman and
frequently uses the Fox. 

Further despite Mr Earley being sent a detailed letter from my Solicitors on the 18th
August the reason for my resignation as DPS, Mr Earley continues to harass me claiming
he did not receive any correspondence from my Solicitors. 

My Solicitors have described this behaviour by Mr Earley as “ belligerent”  contrary to the
objectives of Mid Sussex licensing authority for the PLH to keep order and peace. 

This only reinforces my belief that Mr Earley is not a fit  and proper person to hold a
PLH. .

I have twice asked Mr Earley to discuss with you Jon today his proposal,to install his wine
supplier as the DPS, I think this indicates that after 7 years at the Fox Earley still has no
idea what the role of the DPS and PLH should be, as such he should be barred from
holding this position in any licensed establishment. 

Paul Lloyd 

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPad

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 101

mailto:Jon.Bryant@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Foverview.mail.yahoo.com%2F%3F.src%3DiOS&data=04%7C01%7Cjon.bryant%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cfd79ea6563e64cddfc2008d97d9dbadc%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637678938664206569%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=KyYJO1Zi1cJiNvxuoNfFHbYO%2BCXPbektjkX5QcavMHY%3D&reserved=0


From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Eloise Gibbons
Jon Bryant
Paul Lloyd
Copies of posts and texts
21 September 2021 16:56:43
Texts between Claire Kacy and customer.pdf 
IMG-20210907-WA0000.jpg
IMG-20210907-WA0002.jpg
IMG-20210907-WA0001.jpg

Hi Jon,

Paul asked me to forward these to you in addition to the attachments which I sent to you on 
his behalf last Friday as part of his objection to Ms Kacy and Mr Early's application to be 
PLH.

I've re-attached a copy of the facebook post from Ms Kacy she posted 30th August 2021 
and also a pdf of the text messages between Ms Kacy and a customer/friend. These were 
supplied to me by the customer after reading online the Facebook post from Ms Kacy. The 
content of this demonstrates  both Mr Early and Ms Kacy's aggressive nature and attitude 
and is not conducive to the prevention of crime and public nuisance that a PLH or DPS 
should be preventing. They also show the stressful and confrontational working 
relationship between both of them and and not ideal for either partner to be working as 
PLH as they clearly have issues in their management style and behaviour. 

Yesterday, I also received angry text messages from Mr Early, where he says ..." I ask you 
one more time to take what you have written about me down before I start getting cross." 
The posts he refers to are the ones I posted in response to Helen Scott's post on the West 
Hoathly and Sharpethrone facebook page and is public record.

I'd also like to point out that in 2019 the owner of the Cat, Andrew, asked Tim to apologise 
to one of his elderly customers, Mr Andy Campbell to whom he was abusive.

Paul Lloyd 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 102



































Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 103



Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 104



Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 105



Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 106



Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 107



Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 108



Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 109



This page is intentionally left blank



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

CM - email redacted
licensing
Re: The Fox Eating and Drinking House Licence - Sharpthorne/West Hoathly 
17 September 2021 11:15:25

Dear Mr. Bryant

Thank you for clarifying the type of license that is to be granted to The Fox, West Hoathly.
With regard to the four licensing objectives you set out I can comment as follows, (which I
did touch upon in my original email) :
1. Prevention of Crime and Disorder - I haven’t witnessed any crime or disorder on our
numerous visits

2. Prevention of Public Nuisance - It is true to say that The Fox have had bands play on
various occasions, which do create some noise whilst they are playing. I have not found it
to be a public nuisance (in the 15 years we have lived here) and my back garden looks
directly onto The Fox. On occasions we have attended these events and they are joyous
occasions which bring the community together (at least those that have a music
appreciation, of which there are many in the surrounding villages). The bands stop playing
by 11pm. Occasionally the sound drifts down the hill but it is not a nuisance noise of
constant thrash metal type bands or shouting vocals.

3. Promotion of Public Safety - The Fox pub (under Tim Earlie and Claire Kacy’s
management) is always well lit at night, so you feel perfectly safe leaving the premises.
There are awnings and canopies covering the outside tables, keeping people dry in a
shower.  When operating prior to lockdown the outside tables had a thick roped off cordon
surrounding the seating area to create a barrier to the road. The toilets/bathrooms are well
maintained and clean. The tables inside are nicely presented and on one revamp in the past,
my husband helped to sand down any possible rough edges on them. Tim recently
introduced a question form to fill out with any food intolerances/preferences. I am Gluten
intolerant and so I was very pleased to see this. During the pandemic, when the pub was
permitted to trade Claire introduced a one way system in the pub, with entrance and exit
only. Also a traffic light system for the toilets to encourage a 1 person at a time. Hand
sanitizer was available on every table and all staff wore masks (some of which I made for
them!). Tables were regularly sanitised. On no occasion did I feel at risk and even when
we visited one time ,late one Sunday, we were among only a few people there and the staff
member on duty was very strict about having all the doors open in the pub to encourage
airflow.

4. Protection of children from harm - We have been taking our children to The Fox for
most of their life  (now 14years old, twins) and have never had cause to feel that were in
any way at risk of harm either inside or in the outside area of the pub. Our children love all
of the interesting objet d’art and quirky things to look at as it keeps them amused and is a
great place to play I-Spy.  Our children are well behaved and treat the pub with respect and
although it is a relaxed atmosphere they do not confuse it as a playground. We often sit
outside also with our children and our dog and the cordoned off barrier rope is a good
indicator to them, as instructed by us, that they do not go beyond and into the road.

I hope these comments and personal experiences of the pub in relation to the Licensing
Objectives are well received this time. 

Kind regards

APPENDIX 8

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 111

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk


Claire Martin



On 17 Sep 2021, at 09:14, licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear Claire,

Thank you for your email in respect of the application for a new Premises Licence at 
The Fox, West Hoathly. To be clear, the Premises Licence that is currently granted 
to the premises is not under consideration. This Licence remains in existence and is 
not affected by the application under consideration. The issues surrounding the 
current licence is a matter strictly between the pertinent parties and not a matter 
for the Licensing Authorities involvement unless particular issues affect either the 
promotion of the ‘Licensing Objectives’ or impacts on the requirements of the 
Licensing Act 2003.

The application currently being considered is solely for the grant of a new Premises 
Licence for the current Leaseholder.

In respect of applications made under the Licensing Act 2003 relevant 
representations can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and 
can be made by any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so.

The issues that you have raised may be considered in other types of applications. 
However, in Licensing Applications a representation is only “relevant” if it relates to 
the likely effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the 
Licensing Objectives.

There are four Licensing Objectives which are of equal importance. They are:

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
2. The Prevention of Public Nuisance
3. The Promotion of Public Safety
4. The Protection of Children from harm

Therefore, to be accepted in licensing applications a representation must be 
relevant to one or more of the objectives. I am not permitted to accept any 
representations that are not relevant under the Act.

Therefore unfortunately, I am sorry that I am currently unable to accept your email 
as a valid representation at this time. However, please could you contact me with if

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 112



there is any further information that supports your representation in respect of the 
actual application for a new Premises Licence and the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.

Kind regards

Jon Bryant

Jon Bryant
Senior Licensing Officer
Mid Sussex District Council
Environmental Health

From: Claire Martin  

Sent: 16 September 2021 16:06

To: licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk>
Subject: The Fox Eating and Drinking House Licence - Sharpthorne/West Hoathly

To Whom it May Concern, 

I am writing to show my support for Tim Earlie and Claire Kacy who run the Fox 
Eating and Drinking House and please kindly ask you to grant them a new alcohol 
licence so that they can keep running their pub and eatery as they have been doing 
so brilliantly for these last 7 or so years. 
It is at the heart of the Sharpthorne community and we have spent much time 
there over the years, as a place to meet friends, a place to celebrate life events, a 
venue for many a school committee meeting, somewhere to hold book club, 
ukulele club and pit our wits against other local quiz teams all of which are made 
more pleasant by having a tipple and a chance to relax. 
It really has a wonderful atmosphere which is masterfully created by Claire’s 
amazing artistic talents and Tim’s culinary expertise and they worked so hardduring 
lockdown to try and reinvent themselves to go with the flow in difficult times. 
The Fox is directly opposite our back garden and we have never had any problems 
with noise from the pub either. 
So PLEASE, PLEASE give them a licence so they can get back on track and we can 
have our pub back the way it was. 
Yours sincerely,
Claire Martin

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 113



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Clive Martin <email redacted> 

Sent: 17 September 2021 19:15 

To: licensing 

Subject:Re: The Fox Pub /  West Hoathly 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 

Flag Status: Completed 

Categories: Orange Category 

You don't often get email from email redacted Learn why this is important 

Dear Jon  

Thank your for your reply. 

Further to your request for additional information: 

* The Prevention of Crime and Disorder & The Prevention of Public Nuisance

Our property, 8 Bayhams Field, is adjacent to ’The Fox’. We have lived here since 2006. In this time 
we have never experienced anti-social behaviour or disorder by pub customers. We have not been 
disturbed by the day-to-day activities of the pub. 
* The Promotion of Public Safety
I have observed, Claire and Tim used a range of measures to ensure their customers remained safe 
throughout the Covid pandemic. One way systems were clearly sign posted. Entry and exit routes 
were  clearly labelled. Further, Claire, Tim and their small team undertook the delivery of food to 
vulnerable  and/or elderly customers. Thus ensuring the pub remained viable, whilst providing a 
safe-service to those in the community who needed it.  

I hope the above serves as additional information, and positively reinforce Claire and Tims' 
application. 

If you have any further questions, please let me know. 

Kind regards 

Clive 

APPENDIX 9

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 115



On 17 Sep 2021, at 12:37, licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk> wrote: 

Dear Mr Martin, 

 Thank you for your email in respect of the application for a new Premises Licence at The 

Fox, West Hoathly. To be clear, the Premises Licence that is currently granted to the  

premises is not under consideration. This Licence remains in existence and is not  

affected by the application under consideration. The issues surrounding the current  

licence is a matter strictly between the pertinent parties and not a matter for the  

Licensing Authorities involvement unless particular issues affect either the promotion of  

the ‘Licensing Objectives’ or impacts on the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003. 

The application currently being considered is solely for the grant of a new Premises  

Licence for the current Leaseholder. 

 In respect of applications made under the Licensing Act 2003 relevant representations 

can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can be made by any  

individual, body or business that has grounds to do so. 

 In Licensing Applications a representation is only “relevant” if it relates to the likely 

effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the Licensing  

Objectives. 

 There are four Licensing Objectives which are of equal importance. They are: 

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

2. The Prevention of Public Nuisance

3. The Promotion of Public Safety

4. The Protection of Children from harm

Therefore, to be accepted in licensing applications a representation must be relevant to 

one or more of the objectives. I am not permitted to accept any representations that  

are not relevant under the Act. 

 I note your comments in the second paragraph sentence of your email. In other words, 

they are the perfect ‘landlords’ of the ’The Fox’ and capable of undertaking the  

responsibilities relating to the holding an alcohol license. Potentially these comments  

surround the promotion of the licensing objectives by the applicant. Are you able to  

provide any other information in this respect and reference it to one or more of the  

above. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 116



 Please note that the consultation period ends at 23:59 hours tonight (17/09) and I 

would need to receive this information by this time. 

Kind regards 

 Jon Bryant 

 Jon Bryant 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Mid Sussex District Council 

Environmental Health 

01444 477428 

 jon.bryant@midsussex.gov.uk 

 www.midsussex.gov.uk 

 <image001.jpg> 

 ‘Working together for a better Mid Sussex’ 

 <image002.png> 

From: Clive Martin <email redacted> 

Sent: 16 September 2021 18:45  

To: licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk>  

Subject: The Fox Pub / West Hoathly 

 You don't often get email from email redacted. Learn why this is important Dear Madam/

Sir 

 We understand Claire and Tim of ‘The Fox’, West Hoathly & Sharpthorne, are  

applying for an alcohol license. Myself and family, without reservation, endorse 

their application. 

 As a neighbour, whose property is adjacent to ‘The Fox’, and with a young family, I have 

found Claire and Tim to be reliable, professional and hardworking individuals.  They focus 

on the Community and its beverage, vittle and social requirements with 

an unwavering energy and conviction. In other words, they are the perfect  

‘landlords’ of the ’The Fox’ and capable of undertaking the responsibilities relating  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 117



to the holding an alcohol license. 

As an aside, Claire and Tims’ ability propensity to adapt throughout the Covid crisis 

has been inspirational. They should get a certificate, if your department awards  

them? 

If you have an queries or would like to discuss the views of locals, please get in  

touch on tel: number redacted 

Your Sincerely 

C.A. Martin B.A. Hons / PGCE

 The information contained in this email may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of  

Information Act 2000. Unless the information contained in this email is legally exempt from  

disclosure, we cannot guarantee that we will not provide the whole or part of this email to a third  

party making a request for information about the subject matter of this email. This email and any  

attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only to be seen and used by the  

named addressees. If you are not the named addressee, any use, disclosure, copying, alteration or  

forwarding of this email and its attachments is unauthorised. If you have received this email in error 

please notify the sender immediately by email or by calling +44 (0) 1444 458 166 and remove this  

email and its attachments from your system. The views expressed within this email and any  

attachments are not necessarily the views or policies of Mid Sussex District Council. We have  

taken precautions to minimise the risk of transmitting software viruses, but we advise you to carry  

out your own virus checks before accessing this email and any attachments. Except where required  

by law, we shall not be responsible for any damage, loss or liability of any kind suffered in  

connection with this email and any attachments, or which may result from reliance on the contents  

of this email and any attachments. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 118



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

DM - email redacted
licensing
Re: LI/21/0881 - The Fox Eating and Drinking House 
17 September 2021 21:37:15
image001.jpg
image002.png
Outlook- Technolog.png

You don't often get email from email redacted Learn why this is important

Hello Jon

Thank you for your email. In relation to your request I confirm that I was responsible for
sound during a live event at The Fox on 3rd July.

Mr Earley was keen to emphasise that noise was kept at a reasonable level and I
therefore monitored output levels with several different devices at differing times
during the performance.

At all times my readings indicated sound from the band equipment confirmed to the
85db limit I believe to have been in place due to COVID 19

I would add that I have been involved in several similar events at The Fox over the years
that Mr Earley and Ms Kacy have run the establishment and at all times they have been
consistent that bands should play at reasonable volumes and finish promptly within set
times.

Obviously I am not an expert but I think that this ably demonstrates a commitment
from Mr Earley and Ms Kacy to their neighbours and falls within your point 2 below.

Any further information required, please don’t hesitate to contact me.

Dom Howard
Technical Director

Mob: - I'm on WhatsApp but prefer Signal
Tel:   number redacted
Twitter: redacted
Skype:redacted

3rd Floor, The Pinnacle, Central Court, Station Way
Crawley, West Sussex RH10 1JH

Imaginit Limited:   Registered in England & Wales
Company number: 7515558
Registered Office: 1st Floor 30 Church Road, Burgess Hill, West Sussex RH15 9AE

From: licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk> 
Sent: 17 September 2021 12:47 PM
To: Dom Howard <redacted>

APPENDIX 10

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 119

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification





Cc: mims.davies.mp@parliament.uk <mims.davies.mp@parliament.uk>
Subject: RE: LI/21/0881 - The Fox Eating and Drinking House

Dear Mr Howard,

Thank you for your email in respect of the application for a new Premises Licence at The Fox,
West Hoathly. To be clear, the Premises Licence that is currently granted to the premises is not
under consideration. This Licence remains in existence and is not affected by the application
under consideration. The issues surrounding the current licence is a matter strictly between the
pertinent parties and not a matter for the Licensing Authorities involvement unless particular
issues affect either the promotion of the ‘Licensing Objectives’ or impacts on the requirements
of the Licensing Act 2003.

The application currently being considered is solely for the grant of a new Premises Licence for
the current Leaseholder.

Firstly, to be clear,  at the time of writing I have only accepted representations from two of the
Responsible Authorities under the Act.

In respect of applications made under the Licensing Act 2003 relevant representations can be
made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can be made by any individual, body
or business that has grounds to do so.

In Licensing Applications a representation is only “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the
grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the Licensing Objectives.

There are four Licensing Objectives which are of equal importance. They are:

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
2. The Prevention of Public Nuisance
3. The Promotion of Public Safety
4. The Protection of Children from harm

Therefore, to be accepted in licensing applications a representation must be relevant to one or
more of the objectives. I am not permitted to accept any representations that are not relevant
under the Act.

I appreciate that there is a strong groundswell of support for the current application, however I
can only put before the Panel the specific comments that are related to the Licensing Objectives.
Obviously, I will advise the panel in generality of the number of emails etc that have been
received in support of the application.  

I note your comments in the fifth paragraph of your email regarding the noise complaints. These
were dealt with by the Environmental Protection Team. Potentially these comments surround
the promotion of the licensing objectives by the applicant. Are you able to provide any other
information in this respect and reference it to the objective above.

Please note that the consultation period ends at 23:59 hours tonight (17/09) and I would need to
receive this information by this time.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 120



Kind regards

Jon Bryant

Jon Bryant
Senior Licensing Officer
Mid Sussex District Council
Environmental Health
01444 477428

jon.bryant@midsussex.gov.uk

www.midsussex.gov.uk

MSDClogo

‘Working together for a better Mid Sussex’

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 121

tel:01444 477428
mailto:jon.bryant@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C57f5781dccfd4353ed9008d97a1aedac%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C1%7C637675078349982306%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=tz2qcDP%2F7ji%2F2xASE%2FO%2Bsy84EmfoJ4k98I%2B2ojKpU6A%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C57f5781dccfd4353ed9008d97a1aedac%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C1%7C637675078349982306%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=tz2qcDP%2F7ji%2F2xASE%2FO%2Bsy84EmfoJ4k98I%2B2ojKpU6A%3D&reserved=0


You don't often get email from email redacted Learn why this is important

From: Dom Howard <email redacted> 
Sent: 16 September 2021 19:03
To: licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk>
Cc: mims.davies.mp@parliament.uk
Subject: LI/21/0881 - The Fox Eating and Drinking House

whom it may concern in the Licensing Department

Before I start on my support of this application, I would like to raise a couple procedural points 
for which I would like clarification. I understand that you have already accepted an objection to 
this licence on grounds of noise, from a party who you should clearly know has a vested interest 
in the closure and disposal of the property as a pub. Furthermore, this individual is also complicit 
in allowing the previous licence to lapse at very short notice and force the new application 
process onto the applicant, presumably as a further means to damage their business so that they 
relinquish the premises.

Is this correct?

If so, this sort of conduct is outrageous and I would consider it to be a gross failure of your remit 
were you to give any sort of weight to these sort of duplicitous tactics. I know little about 
Licensing, but I do know a lot about common decency and justice and for that reason I have 
copied in our local MP whom I am sure will be interested that their constituent receives a fair 
hearing and decision.

Further, I would like details of the actual noise complaints as I believe that for one of the events 
being cited, I was responsible for the sound equipment at the event. I monitored the sound 
output throughout the event and am confident that no legal noise limits were breached.

In terms of support, The Fox like many other businesses has found recent times challenging. 
Rather than feel sorry for themselves the applicants have fought tooth and nail to keep their 
business alive, and have provided a bedrock of support to many in the village during the 
lockdowns. Whilst being denied the right to conduct their main business as a pub/restaurant, 
Tim and Clare diversified into other activities and supported the community, often at 
considerable cost and effort to themselves.

If you aren't aware of its history this pub has been in this village for much longer than any 
current resident has lived here. Anyone moving to the village does so in full knowledge that 
there is a thriving pub here. Generations have lived and died while the pub has been at the 
centre of village life in Sharpthorne.

While there have been times when the pub has been under attended due to poor stewardship, 
under Tim and Clare's imaginative hospitality over the last few years the pub has become a well 
loved  local establishment with a wide range of diverse customers. Not just locals either, but 
ramblers and visitors to the area who are seeking genuine Sussex culture, history and cuisine, of 
which the pub is such a fine example.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 122

http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


The pub offers considerable employment opportunities to young people in the village who work 
behind the scenes. It has also engaged directly with the local community, often helping with 
village events and fundraisers.

Within its local fraternity of which many in the three villages of Sharpthorne, West Hoathly and 
Highbrook (some 2100 people) would count themselves, there are not just drinkers, but parents 
groups, charities, local clubs, music clubs. Lifelong friendships have been built within the walls of 
the pub, along with many happy memories, all of which risk being erased.

If you are not aware, The Fox is very much the last pub in the area. Although The Cat Inn is very 
close it is more interested in operating as an upmarket restaurant and offers little facility to local 
pub goers.

In summary, I would ask you to balance all of the positives I have mentioned above against 3 
individual complaints, all from people with an axe to grind and one whose veracity should be 
doubted. It will be an enormous tragedy for the local community and the people who will lose 
their jobs if this pub is forced to close, which will no doubt be the result if this licence application 
is refused.

Regards

Dom Howard
Technical Director

Mob: +44 (0)number redacted 
Tel:    number redacted
Twitter: redacted
Skype: redcated

3rd Floor, The Pinnacle, Central Court, Station Way
Crawley, West Sussex RH10 1JH

Imaginit Limited:   Registered in England & Wales
Company number: 7515558
Registered Office: 1st Floor 30 Church Road, Burgess Hill, West Sussex RH15 9AE

The information contained in this email may be subject to public disclosure under the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000. Unless the information contained in this email is legally 
exempt from disclosure, we cannot guarantee that we will not provide the whole or part of 
this email to a third party making a request for information about the subject matter of this 
email. This email and any attachments may contain confidential information and is 
intended only to be seen and used by the named addressees. If you are not the named 
addressee, any use, disclosure, copying, alteration or forwarding of this email and its 
attachments is unauthorised. If you have received this email in error please notify the 
sender immediately by email or by calling +44 (0) 1444 458 166 and remove this email and 
its attachments from your system. The views expressed within this email and any 
attachments are not necessarily the views or policies of Mid Sussex District Council. We 
have taken precautions to minimise the risk of transmitting software viruses, but we advise 
you to carry out your own virus checks before accessing this email and any attachments. 
Except where required by law, we shall not be responsible for any damage, loss or liability 
of any kind suffered in connection with this email and any attachments, or which may

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 123

tel:+44 (0) 1444 458 166


result from reliance on the contents of this email and any attachments.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 124



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

email redacted
licensing
RE: Alcohol licence the Fox West Hoathly 
17 September 2021 16:08:38 
image001.jpg
image002.png

You don't often get email from email redacted Learn why this is important

Dear Mr Bryant,
Thank you for reply,
Please could I submit the following which is relevant to the following licensing objective;
         The Prevention of Public Nuisance
As residents of Hazelwood which is located some 50m from the Fox we are one of the closest
houses to the Fox and are therefore well placed to comment on whether the running of the pub
has caused a public nuisance. We have experienced no issues apart from the first instance of
outdoor live music this Summer which was quite loud. The following live music events were
much quieter and none finished at a late hour.
Apart from this one event we do not consider that the running of the pub over the past few
years has caused a nuisance to us, rather it has been run in a way that we have been able to
enjoy having this amenity so close to our house.

Many thanks,
Dr Joy Bannister
Capt. Alan Bannister
Hazelwood
Highbrook Lane
West Hoathly
East Grinstead
RH194PJ

Sent from Mail for Windows

From: licensing
Sent: 17 September 2021 15:50
To: JB email redacted
Subject: RE: Alcohol licence the Fox West Hoathly

Dear Dr Joy Bannister and Capt. Alan Bannister,

Thank you for your email in respect of the application for a new Premises Licence at The Fox, 
West Hoathly. To be clear, the Premises Licence that is currently granted to the premises is not 
under consideration. This Licence remains in existence and is not affected by the application 
under consideration. The issues surrounding the current licence is a matter strictly between the 
pertinent parties and not a matter for the Licensing Authorities involvement unless particular 
issues affect either the promotion of the ‘Licensing Objectives’ or impacts on the requirements 
of the Licensing Act 2003.

The application currently being considered is solely for the grant of a new Premises Licence for 
the current Leaseholder.

APPENDIX 11

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 125

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgo.microsoft.com%2Ffwlink%2F%3FLinkId%3D550986&data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cd14d38d543a448b6840908d979ed0598%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637674881176489767%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=gu1XzYAh9wjyeaQc6YSnVUksmMJ393ySuKzJx75MlqM%3D&reserved=0
mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk




In respect of applications made under the Licensing Act 2003 relevant representations can be
made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can be made by any individual, body
or business that has grounds to do so.

The issues that you have raised may be considered in other types of applications. However, in
Licensing Applications a representation is only “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the
grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the Licensing Objectives.

There are four Licensing Objectives which are of equal importance. They are:

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
2. The Prevention of Public Nuisance
3. The Promotion of Public Safety
4. The Protection of Children from harm

Therefore, to be accepted in licensing applications a representation must be relevant to one or 
more of the objectives. I am not permitted to accept any representations that are not relevant 
under the Act. I appreciate that there is a strong groundswell of support for the current 
application, however I can only put before the Panel the specific comments that are related to 
the Licensing Objectives. Obviously, I will advise the panel in generality of the number of emails 
etc that have been received in support of the application. 

Under the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 I also require the full address of any 
persons making representation.

Therefore unfortunately, I am sorry that I am currently unable to accept your email as a valid 
representation at this time. However, please could you contact me with if there is any further 
information that supports your representation in respect of the actual application for a new 
Premises Licence and the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Kind regards

Jon Bryant

Jon Bryant
Senior Licensing Officer
Mid Sussex District Council
Environmental Health
01444 477428

jon.bryant@midsussex.gov.uk

www.midsussex.gov.uk

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 126

mailto:jon.bryant@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cd14d38d543a448b6840908d979ed0598%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637674881176489767%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=hfk4uYHyprpmi2%2Bs7jp664YRZGtJbCdWYFcQaIfyrJs%3D&reserved=0


You don't often get email from email redacted Learn why this is important

MSDClogo

‘Working together for a better Mid Sussex’

From: JB - email redacted> 
Sent: 17 September 2021 11:10
To: licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk>
Subject: Alcohol licence the Fox West Hoathly

Dear Sir or Madam,
We are sending this to support the licence application for Claire Kacy for the Fox pub in West
Hoathly.
We are one of the nearest properties to the pub and, as such, are one of the most affected by
issues such as parking and noise.
We have lived here for over 30 years so we have seen several landlords come and go over the
years. All have been awful apart from Claire and Tim. This couple have transformed a run-down
drinking pub with awful food into a pub that is now much loved for both its food and its friendly
atmosphere.
Their first outdoor music event this year was, admittedly, quite loud and no doubt prompted
some complaints but the subsequent events were much quieter and ended early in the evening.
I understand they have committed to not having amplified music outside so this should avoid any
future noise issues.
Many community groups meet here such as local sports teams, music clubs, art clubs and many
more hold meetings here. We have thoroughly enjoyed their music events and quiz nights, some
of which have been for charity.
Their support for the community throughout the lockdown by offering food delivery and then a
shop was hugely appreciated.
There are always going to be people who are not happy with living near to a successful business
but this has to be weighed up against the benefits to the community which, in this case, far
outweigh any minor inconveniences.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 127

http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cd14d38d543a448b6840908d979ed0598%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637674881176609245%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=mr7z89MMXspiL5egsIGvZUtD05axNMJkfnKqweDYvuY%3D&reserved=0


I cannot imagine more hard-working and welcoming landlords. As a community we all fear that
the loss of an alcohol licence will put them out of business and we will lose this much loved and
valuable community asset.

Yours faithfully, Dr Joy Bannister and Capt. Alan Bannister

Sent from Mail for Windows

The information contained in this email may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom
of Information Act 2000. Unless the information contained in this email is legally exempt from
disclosure, we cannot guarantee that we will not provide the whole or part of this email to a
third party making a request for information about the subject matter of this email. This email
and any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only to be seen and
used by the named addressees. If you are not the named addressee, any use, disclosure,
copying, alteration or forwarding of this email and its attachments is unauthorised. If you have
received this email in error please notify the sender immediately by email or by calling +44 (0)
1444 458 166 and remove this email and its attachments from your system. The views expressed
within this email and any attachments are not necessarily the views or policies of Mid Sussex
District Council. We have taken precautions to minimise the risk of transmitting software viruses,
but we advise you to carry out your own virus checks before accessing this email and any
attachments. Except where required by law, we shall not be responsible for any damage, loss or
liability of any kind suffered in connection with this email and any attachments, or which may
result from reliance on the contents of this email and any attachments.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 128

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgo.microsoft.com%2Ffwlink%2F%3FLinkId%3D550986&data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cd14d38d543a448b6840908d979ed0598%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637674881176619198%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=vmd8kFiW%2FKHUBRjnGVUf3JQkH0X%2BiNVNh555mceYesM%3D&reserved=0


From: Karen Kashdan <email redacted> 
Sent: 17 September 2021 13:03 
To: licensing 
Subject:Re: The Fox Eating & Drinking House, West Hoathly 
Follow Up Flag: Follow up 
Flag Status: Completed 
Categories: Orange Category 
[You don't often get email from mail redacted. Learn why this is important at  
http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification.] 

Dear Jon Bryant 

Thank you for your reply explaining the procedures that are being undergone in respect of the new  
Premises Licence for the Leaseholder of the above premises. 

I confirm that this comment confirming that we live just across Finches Field and have never had any 
issues with noise etc.is in relation to the objective Prevention of a Public Nuisance. To expand on this 
we are not disturbed by noise during licensing hours or at closing time and although we have heard 
the bands on occasion they do not disturb our enjoyment of our own garden and they always finish 
at a respectful time so as not to cause disturbance into the night. 

I hope this will be of help to support the application. 

Kind regards 

Steve & Karen Kashdan 

email redacted

number redacted

> On 17 Sep 2021, at 12:31, licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk> wrote:

> Dear Steve & Karen Kashdan,

> Thank you for your email in respect of the application for a new Premises Licence at The Fox, West

Hoathly. To be clear, the Premises Licence that is currently granted to the premises is not under  

consideration. This Licence remains in existence and is not affected by the application under  

consideration. The issues surrounding the current licence is a matter strictly between the pertinent 

APPENDIX 12

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 129



parties and not a matter for the Licensing Authorities involvement unless particular issues 
affect either the promotion of the 'Licensing Objectives' or impacts on the requirements of the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

> The application currently being considered is solely for the grant of a new Premises Licence for the

current Leaseholder. 

> In respect of applications made under the Licensing Act 2003 relevant representations can be
made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can be made by any individual,

 body or business that  has grounds to do so. 

> In Licensing Applications a representation is only "relevant" if it relates to the likely effect of the
grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the Licensing Objectives.

> There are four Licensing Objectives which are of equal importance. They are:

> 1.      The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

> 2.      The Prevention of Public Nuisance

> 3.      The Promotion of Public Safety

> 4.      The Protection of Children from harm

> Therefore, to be accepted in licensing applications a representation must be relevant to one or
more

of the objectives. I am not permitted to accept any representations that are not relevant under the 
Act. 

> I note your comments in the second sentence of your email. Potentially these comments surround
the

promotion of the licensing objective of Prevention of a Public Nuisance by the applicant. This 
includes noise nuisance. Are you able to confirm that this comment is in relation to this objective 
and if possible are you able to provide any other information in this respect. 

> Please note that the consultation period ends at 23:59 hours tonight (17/09) and I would need to
receive this information by this time. 

> Kind regards

>

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 130



> Jon Bryant

> 

> Jon Bryant 

> Senior Licensing Officer

> Mid Sussex District Council

> Environmental Health

> 01444 477428

> jon.bryant@midsussex.gov.uk

> https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%
2F& amp;

data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cbf542d170d1d419891dd08d979d31b59%
7C24 8de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637674769865429164%7CUnknown%
7CTWFpbGZsb 3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%
7C1000&amp;sdata= OBWyLsxS5b5X9ZCZpRbijXsL%2F7PsFtHdJ5tzASBgbKI%3D&amp;reserved=> 

> 'Working together for a better Mid Sussex'

> -----Original Message-----

> From: Karen Kashdan <email redacted>

> Sent: 16 September 2021 17:44

> To: licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk>

> Subject: The Fox Eating & Drinking House, West Hoathly

> [You don't often get email from email redacted. Learn why this is important at

http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification.] 

> To whom it may concern

> I understand an application for a license is currently being considered for the above premises. In
connection with this and as very local residents in West Hoathly my husband and I would like to add 
our support to the application. We live just across Finches Field and have never had any issues with 
noise  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 131



etc. We do visit the pub from time to time and we are very happy to have this available to us. We  

believe that Claire and Tim have done an amazing job of keeping the business going during lockdown 

and beyond and have supported locals with different options such as take away and a shop. It would 
be a huge loss to the community if the license was not granted. 

> Steve & Karen Kashdan

> number redacted

> Sent from my iPhone

> The information contained in this email may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of

Information Act 2000. Unless the information contained in this email is legally exempt from 
disclosure, we cannot guarantee that we will not provide the whole or part of this email to a third 
party making a request for information about the subject matter of this email. This email and any 
attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only to be seen and used by the 
named addressees. If you are not the named addressee, any use, disclosure, copying, alteration or 
forwarding of this email and its attachments is unauthorised. If you have received this email in error 
please notify the sender immediately by email or by calling +44 (0) 1444 458 166 and remove this 
email and its attachments from your system. The views expressed within this email and any 
attachments are not necessarily the views or policies of Mid Sussex District Council. We have taken 
precautions to minimise the risk of transmitting software viruses, but we advise you to carry out 
your own virus checks before accessing this email and any attachments. Except where required by 
law, we shall not be responsible for any damage, loss or liability of any kind suffered in connection 
with this email and any attachments, or which may result from reliance on the contents of this email 
and any attachments. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 132



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

PB - email redacted 
licensing
Re: The Fox, West Hoathly 
17 September 2021 13:15:28 
image001.jpg
image002.png

Dear Jon,

Many thanks for your detailed response to my email regarding The Fox.

Living opposite a pub has meant we are well aware that there will from time to time be
street noise from customers and from music. I would like to note that under the Licensing
Objective:

2. The Prevention of Public Nuisance

The Fox has always given advanced warning when any live music was to be played. That
post lockdown live music was brought forward in timings in consideration to neighbours
and thus in effect has NOT been a nuisance. That before Covid, when live music was
performed, advanced warning was given and timings were kept to acceptable timings. I am
aware of this because our young son's bedroom faces the pub and he has never felt
disturbed.

I have been more disturbed by a neighbour's son who sits in his car, windows closed,
listening to repetitive music than by the pub!

I hope this helps. With thanks,

Poppy Lewis

On Fri, 17 Sept 2021 at 12:54, licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear Poppy

Thank you for your email in respect of the application for a new Premises Licence at The
Fox, West Hoathly. To be clear, the Premises Licence that is currently granted to the
premises is not under consideration. This Licence remains in existence and is not
affected by the application under consideration. The issues surrounding the current
licence is a matter strictly between the pertinent parties and not a matter for the

APPENDIX 13

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 133

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk




Licensing Authorities involvement unless particular issues affect either the promotion of
the ‘Licensing Objectives’ or impacts on the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.

The application currently being considered is solely for the grant of a new Premises
Licence for the current Leaseholder.

In respect of applications made under the Licensing Act 2003 relevant representations
can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can be made by any
individual, body or business that has grounds to do so.

In Licensing Applications a representation is only “relevant” if it relates to the likely
effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the Licensing
Objectives.

There are four Licensing Objectives which are of equal importance. They are:
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

2. The Prevention of Public Nuisance

3. The Promotion of Public Safety

4. The Protection of Children from harm

Therefore, to be accepted in licensing applications a representation must be relevant to 
one or more of the objectives. I am not permitted to accept any representations that are 
not relevant under the Act. I appreciate that there is a strong groundswell of support for 
the current application, however I can only put before the Panel the specific comments 
that are related to the Licensing Objectives. Obviously, I will advise the panel in 
generality of the number of emails etc that have been received in support of the 
application.  

I note your comments in the last sentence of your email. Potentially these comments 
surround the promotion of the licensing objective of Prevention of a Public Nuisance by 
the applicant. This includes noise nuisance. Are you able to confirm that this comment is 
in relation to this objective and if possible are you able to provide any other information 
in this respect.

Please note that the consultation period ends at 23:59 hours tonight (17/09) and I would 
need to receive this information by this time.

Kind regards
Jon Bryant

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 134



From: poppy berry <email redacted> 
Sent: 16 September 2021 20:17
To: licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk> 
Subject: The Fox, West Hoathly
To whom it may concern.

I live in the community just above The Fox, you could say opposite, and have lived 
happily with a pub on my doorstep for 3 years. We are a family with children and have 
never found complaint with them.

I visit only occasionally, but when I do they are a true community pub of old. Villagers 
chat and socialise together, visitors feel welcomed and there is always a good vibe. The 
occasional live music events are well advertised ahead of time, and it's a PUB, so noise 
is to be expected.

Tim is a friendly landlord, without a pub the villages of Sharpthorn & West Hoathly will 
lack a place to find relaxed common ground where they feel that they belong. Yes, The 
Cat is there, but each pub has a unique character and The Fox is more dedicated to locals 
and it's locals who need these spaces.

I really hope the few don't ruin it for the many.

BTW, We've had Paul Lloyd knock on our door a few times asking if we have any 
grievances with Tim & Claire, noise or anything that disturbs us about The Fox. I've 
always been happy to tell him that we have not.

Yours sincerely,
Poppy Lewis.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 135

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

SA email redacted
licensing
Letter of support - The Fox Eating and Drinking House 
17 September 2021 12:19:07

To whom it may concern,

I am writing this letter of support for The Fox Eating and Drinking House in
West Hoathly. I have lived close to The Fox for 8 years and have always
enjoyed going with my family and friends and couldn’t imagine it not being
there in the same capacity that Claire and Tim have run it for all these
years. 

The Fox has always been a warm, friendly and safe place to go as a family.
Our three young children are always welcomed and well catered for. I enjoy
seeing people of all ages come together and socialise. We have met older
residents from the village at The Fox and from this been able to keep in
touch with them which in the last few years has been crucial for many
peoples mental health and prevented loneliness. I know that Claire and Tim
have done a wonderful job in providing meals for many of these people
throughout the pandemic. 

On many occasions that I have attended The Fox there have been groups of
young adults and they have always been very well behaved and respectable.
I have seen bar staff ensuring they are over 18 before serving them and I
believe the lovely atmosphere The Fox always has is largely down to the
way Claire and Tim run things and how much everyone respects them. It
brings me great comfort to know that when my children are old enough to
go out with their friends they will have a safe place to go where all the
relevant laws are followed. 

The Fox almost certainly prevents crime and disorder as it is a safe and
incredibly well run establishment well respected by people of all ages.
Claire and Tim welcome local bands and provide excellent entertainment.
They adhere to the times set out to open and close and have music and they
do all that they can to ensure people leave quietly and respect the local
residents. I have also seen people refused drinks when they have had too
much and I really respect them for this. The business has done so incredibly
well to keep going throughout the pandemic and all along support the
residents.

The Fox really is the heart of our village and to see it close would have a

APPENDIX 14

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 137

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk


hugely damaging and negative impact on so many. The livelihoods of many
gone, the social impact on many that rely on the safe and warm environment
the fox provides gone. The Fox has been in our village longer than any of us
and almost every single resident wants it to stay as Claire and Tim have run
it since they started.

Kindest regards

Sophie Abbott 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 138



From: 
Sent on: 
To: 
Subject: 

Follow up: 

Susan Burrows <email redacted> 
Friday, September 17, 2021 9:17:19 AM 
licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk> 
Re: The Fox Eating and Drinking House -Follow up 

Follow up status: Completed 
Completed on: Friday, September 17, 2021 12:32:00 PM 

[You don't often get email from email redacted. Learn why this is important at http://
aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification.] 

Dear Mr Bryant, 

Thank you for your prompt reply. 

1. As far as we are aware, there has been no crime or disorder at this public house.
2. We are unaware of any public nuisance and have good friends who live within 200 meters of the
premises who have never had any issues or concerns and would indeed voice them if they had.
3. In our view, Tim and Claire have been fastidious in their promotion of public safety, especially so
with regard to covid measures.
4. Whilst eating or drinking at The Fox, we have never experienced any child coming to any harm or
potential harm.

Regards, 
Sue and Jeremy Burrows.  Oak Tree Cottage, North Lane, West Hoathly, RH19 4QF. 

Sent from my iPad 

> On 17 Sep 2021, at 09:16, licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk> wrote:
>
> Dear Susan and Jeremy Burrows, 
> 
> Thank you for your email in respect of the application for a new Premises Licence at The Fox, West 
Hoathly. To be clear, the Premises Licence that is currently granted to the premises is not under 
consideration. This Licence remains in existence and is not affected by the application under 
consideration. The issues surrounding the current licence is a matter strictly between the pertinent 
parties and not a matter for the Licensing Authorities involvement unless particular issues affect either 
the promotion of the 'Licensing Objectives' or impacts on the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003. 
> 
> The application currently being considered is solely for the grant of a new Premises Licence for the 
current Leaseholder. 
> 
> In respect of applications made under the Licensing Act 2003 relevant representations can be made 
in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can be made by any individual, body or business 
that has grounds to do so. 
> 
> The issues that you have raised may be considered in other types of applications. However, in 
Licensing Applications a representation is only "relevant" if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of 
the licence on the promotion of at least one of the Licensing Objectives. 
> 
> There are four Licensing Objectives which are of equal importance. They are: 
> 
> 1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
> 2.      The Prevention of Public Nuisance

APPENDIX 15

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 139



> 3.      The Promotion of Public Safety
> 4.      The Protection of Children from harm
>
> Therefore, to be accepted in licensing applications a representation must be relevant to one or more 
of the objectives. I am not permitted to accept any representations that are not relevant under the Act. 
> 
> Under the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 I also require the full address of any 
persons making representation. 
> 
> Therefore unfortunately, I am sorry that I am currently unable to accept your email as a valid 
representation at this time. However, please could you contact me with if there is any further 
information that supports your representation in respect of the actual application for a new Premises 
Licence and the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
> 
> Kind regards 
> 
> Jon Bryant 
> 
> 
> Jon Bryant
> Senior Licensing Officer
> Mid Sussex District 
Council
> Environmental Health
> 01444 477428

> > jon.bryant@midsussex.gov.uk 
> 
> 
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&am
p;data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C64df18b48c4d48cf552908d979bbf618%7C
248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637674670455825686%7CUnknown%7CTW
FpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1
000&amp;sdata=OPoMbZXBegR1Bpe0q8LQM5uw1Z11JkvaUoW2mf0Ssxk%3D&amp;reserved=0 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 'Working together for a better Mid Sussex'
>
> 
> 
> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Susan Burrows <email redacted>
> Sent: 16 September 2021 17:24
> To: licensing <licensing@midsussex.gov.uk>
> Subject: The Fox Eating and Drinking House
> 
> [You don't often get email from email  redacted. Learn why this is important at 
http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification.] 
> 
> Good Afternoon, 
> I am writing in support of The Fox Eating and Drinking House which in my view is run to an excellent
standard by Tim and Claire. The interior atmosphere created and the food and service provided, has
been consistent ever since they first took over.
> They go above and beyond what could be expected of a relatively small local and punch very much
over their weight in what they provide to the Sharpthorne, Highbrook and West Hoathly community.
>

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 140



> They provide cricket teas when asked and open specially on a Sunday after a match which enables
the visitors, players and their families to wind down and discuss the game.
>
> They run excellent quiz nights, provide wedding breakfasts and act as a wonderful low key party 
venue for special occasions. 
> 
> They have occasional live music which is so rare these days.  They have been superb during 
lockdown by delivering meals to locals, especially of help to those more isolated and housebound. 
They have put a huge amount of time, research and effort into creating a Village Pantry. 
> 
> I know that art and music groups, ramblers, AGMs, Morris Dancing, Carol singing, all take place 
there. 
> 
> They raise money for charity, donate to local causes and are overwhelmingly popular in the local 
community. 
> 
> We need this pub which also provides an alternative to the other village pub, to act as healthy 
(albeit quite different) competition. 
> 
> It has been here for around 100 years and so please help to keep this great concern in business for 
this hardworking team and the greater community. 
> 
> Thank you for your kind consideration, 
> Sue and Jeremy Burrows.
>
> Sent from my iPad 
> The information contained in this email may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of
Information Act 2000. Unless the information contained in this email is legally exempt from disclosure,
we cannot guarantee that we will not provide the whole or part of this email to a third party making a
request for information about the subject matter of this email. This email and any attachments may
contain confidential information and is intended only to be seen and used by the named addressees.
If you are not the named addressee, any use, disclosure, copying, alteration or forwarding of this
email and its attachments is unauthorised. If you have received this email in error please notify the
sender immediately by email or by calling +44 (0) 1444 458 166 and remove this email and its
attachments from your system. The views expressed within this email and any attachments are not
necessarily the views or policies of Mid Sussex District Council. We have taken precautions to
minimise the risk of transmitting software viruses, but we advise you to carry out your own virus
checks before accessing this email and any attachments. Except where required by law, we shall not
be responsible for any damage, loss or liability of any kind suffered in connection with this email and
any attachments, or which may result from reliance on the contents of this email and any
attachments.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 141



This page is intentionally left blank



Proposed Conditions 

Agreed Conditions with police 

1. Digital CCTV and appropriate recording equipment to be installed in accordance with Home
Office Guidelines relating to UK Police Requirements for Digital CCTV System (PSDB
Publication Number 09/05), operated and maintained throughout the premises internally
and externally to cover all public areas including the entrance to the premises and the
outside tables and chairs area. The system shall be on and recording at all times the
premises licence is in operation.

The CCTV cameras and recording equipment must be of sufficient quality to work in all
lighting levels inside and outside the premises at all times.

CCTV footage will be stored for a minimum of 31 days.

The management will give full and immediate cooperation and technical assistance to the
Police in the event that CCTV footage is required for the prevention and detection of
suspected or alleged crime.

The CCTV images will record and display dates and times, and these times will be checked
regularly to ensure their accuracy.

Subject to GDPR guidance and legislation, the management of the premises will ensure that
key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV, and will be able to download selected
footage onto a disk (or other electronic portable device acceptable to Sussex Police) for the
police without difficulty or delay and without charge to Sussex Police.

Any breakdown or system failure will be notified to the police immediately & remedied as
soon as practicable.

In the event of the CCTV system hard drive being seized as evidence as part of a criminal
investigation by Sussex Police or for any other reason, the premises will be expected to
install a replacement hard drive or a temporary replacement drive as soon as practicable.

2. An incident log will be maintained by the premises showing a detailed note of incidents that
occur in the premises and any refusals of alcohol. The incident log will be inspected and
signed off by the DPS (or a person with delegated authority) at least once a month. The log
book should be kept on the premises and be available for inspection at all times the
premises are open by officers of any responsible authority. An incident will be defined as
being one which involves an allegation of a criminal offence.

3. Patrons will not be permitted to take drinks in open containers to consume outside on the
pavement/public highway beyond the licensed area of the premises (and beyond the outer
boundary of the outside tables and chairs area which is within the licensed area) whilst
smoking or otherwise congregating outside of the premises beyond the licensed area.

4. All off sales of alcohol will be made in sealed containers

5. Security Industry Authority (SIA) door supervisors must be deployed at the premises at any
time when the licence holder identifies by way of a suitable and sufficient written risk
assessment that SIA door supervisors and other security measures are necessary.  It must

APPENDIX 16

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 143



also consider busy periods such as Bank Holidays, Christmas and New Year, Seasonal 
Variations and other Town Centre Events along with any special events at the premises such 
as live music, discos, screening of sporting events and other similar functions or 
entertainment.  The risk assessment will also cover any requirement for polycarbonate 
drinking vessels, ticket only events, entry restrictions and last entry times. The written risk 
assessment must be available on the premises for inspection by police and authorised 
officers of the Licensing Authority.  This written risk assessment is to be reviewed and 
updated as necessary and at least annually and must take into account information or 
guidance offered by the police and the licensing authority. 

6. All SIA registered door supervisors when deployed shall wear and operate body worn video 
cameras with a recording facility. The body worn cameras will be recording all the time the 
door supervisors are on duty whether insider the premises or in the vicinity of the premises 
at ground level.  All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days, with date 
and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available upon the request of 
police, or authorised local authority officers, throughout the entire 31 days period. The 
premises will ensure there are sufficient spare batteries fully charged for the body worn 
cameras so there is no issue with cameras not recording due to flat batteries. 

7. Whenever SIA door supervisors are on duty, they must be provided in accordance with the 
following: 

• At a ratio of 1 per 100 customers or part thereof, although at all times with a 
minimum of two; 

• On duty until the premises has closed to the public, licensable activities has ceased 
and the venue is completely clear of patrons and all customers have dispersed from 
the immediate area; 

• Must wear clearly marked reflective jacket or tabard in order that they can be readily 
identifiable; 

• Must be equipped with clickers or other device(s) in order that they can accurately 
measure and ensure that the maximum capacity of the premises is complied with a 
written record being kept; and 

• Must monitor/supervise any queue of customers waiting to gain access to the 
premises and ensure that so long as social distancing requirements are in place, that 
these are complied with both inside and outside the premises. 

7. SIA door supervisors shall complete incident logs prior to the end of their shift. Records shall 
be maintained at the premises containing the full name, date of birth, and SIA badge 
number of every Door Supervisor. The record shall include all dates and times when a Door 
Supervisor is employed. If Staff are employed through an agency the name and address of 
the agency must be included. The Door Supervisor records will be kept at the premises and 
made immediately available to officers of any responsible authority upon request. 

8. Those performing the role of door supervisor shall not perform any other role when engaged 
for the purpose of door supervision activities.  

9.  The premises will operate a “Challenge 25” policy whereby any person attempting to buy 
alcohol who appears to be under 25 will be asked for photographic ID to prove their age. The 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 144



recommended forms of ID that will be accepted are passports, driving licenses with a 
photograph, photographic military ID or proof of age cards bearing the “PASS” mark 
hologram 

10. Suitable and sufficient signage advertising the “Challenge 25” policy will be displayed in 
prominent locations in the premises. 

11. The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that all staff members engaged or to be engaged, 
in selling alcohol at the premises shall receive the following induction training. This training 
will take place prior to the selling of such products: 

·            The lawful selling of age restricted products  

·            Refusing the sale of alcohol to a person who is drunk  

Further verbal reinforcement/refresher training covering the above will be carried out 
thereafter at intervals not to exceed three months, with the date and time of the verbal 
reinforcement/refresher training documented. 

All such training undertaken by staff members shall be fully documented and recorded and 
signed and dated by both the employee and the DPS. All training records shall be kept on the 
premises and made available to officers of any responsible authority upon request 

12. Alcohol deliveries will only be made to a residential or business address and not to a public 
place.  

13. The age verification policy (including challenge 25) shall clearly be advertised at each stage 
of the order and on all advertising.  All forms of advertising and promotional literature 
detailing the delivery service (including internet sites and flyers/leaflets) will clearly state 
that alcohol should only be purchased for delivery to intended recipients (or persons who 
will accept delivery on behalf of the named recipient) who are aged over 18. Customers will 
be reminded that it is a criminal offence for a person under 18 to purchase or attempt to 
purchase alcohol and that it is also an offence to purchase alcohol on behalf of a person 
aged under 18 

14. At the time the order is placed a declaration will be required from the person placing the 
order that that person is aged over 18 years of age, and that the intended recipient is over 
18 years of age. This process will be documented, (tick box before proceeding, record of 
verbal acknowledgement or similar). These records must be retained for no less than twelve 
months and produced on request to an officer of a Responsible Authority. 

a. For deliveries where the alcohol is delivered by a third party, the alcohol is 
concealed in a secure sealed package, and the DPS has no direct supervision or 
control over the delivery (such as an independent courier or Royal Mail), there 
cannot be an age verification challenge on delivery, but the above conditions will be 
followed. 

b. For deliveries made directly by the DPS or their employees, staff or agent or persons 
instructed by the DPS/PLH, the person accepting the delivery must be aged 18 years 
or over.  Where the person accepting delivery appears to be under 25, a recognised 
photographic ID must be produced prior to delivery.  No ID, no delivery. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 145



c. Where the premises contracts a third party to deliver alcohol on their behalf and the 
person collecting the alcohol from the premises delivers it directly to the customer 
within a short timescale (such as Deliveroo, Just Eats), the premises will ensure that 
the third party only employs delivery employees or agents aged 18 or over; is aware 
that alcohol is included in the delivery; that the delivery person actively engages 
with the person receiving delivery and operates a challenge 25 policy rather than 
just handing the delivery over; that in the event that the recipient of the alcohol is 
challenged for ID and does not provide appropriate and valid ID, the delivery person 
will retain the alcohol and return it to the premises. 

Additional conditions from the Proposed Operating Schedule 

15. Clear and legible notices will be prominently displayed to remind customers to leave quietly 
and have regard for neighbours. 

Conditions Proposed by Applicant in response to Environmental Protection Team Representations 

16. No Amplified Music to be played inside or outside the Premises 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021 146



Liquor Licensing Committee - 12 October 2021

Document is Restricted

147

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To confirm the Minute of the previous meeting held on 7 September 2021.
	5 Application of a New Premises Licence.
	Appendix 1 - Application
	Application
	FLOOR PLAN - THE FOX

	Appendix 2 - Map
	Appendix 3 - Applicant Submission
	Applicant Comments 1
	Applicant Comments 2
	Applicant Comments 3

	APPENDIX 4 - PHOTOS
	Appendix 5 - Rep Licensing Authority
	LA Rep (1)
	Progammed Inspection Report (2)
	Inspection Letter June 2017 (3)
	Tel: 01444 477294

	NoiseComplaints_661951_01 (4)
	NoiseComplaints_726425_01 (5)
	WSCC Press release (6)
	969414 - 17 (7)
	Noise Complaint Dec 2019 (8)
	Letter re Noise Compliant 2020 (9)
	Letter 10 August 2021 (9)
	Letter Tim Earley (10)
	Email regarding TEN (11)
	Email regarding Transfer Application (11)

	Appendix 6 - Rep Environment Protection Team
	EP Rep 1
	EP Rep 2
	Letter 16th December
	Environmental Protection Act 1990

	Letter re noise nuisance

	Appendix 7 a - Rep Paul Lloyd
	Rep 1
	IMG-20210907-WA0000
	IMG-20210907-WA0001
	IMG-20210907-WA0002
	Very final text
	DRAFT Letter to Dean Wilson LLP
	Dear Sirs

	The Fox - rent letter
	The Fox - Business Owners: Timothy Early/Claire Kacy

	Rep 2
	Photo
	Rep 3
	Rep 4
	Rep 5
	Texts between Claire Kacy and customer

	Appendix 7 b - Rep Paul Lloyd
	Page 8
	Appendix 7 b - Rep Paul Lloyd

	Appendix 7 c - Rep Paul Lloyd
	Appendix 8 - Rep Claire Martin
	Appendix 9 - Rep Clive Martin
	Appendix 10 - Rep Dom Howard
	Appendix 11 - Rep J & A Bannister
	Appendix 12 - Rep K Kashdan
	Appendix 13 - Rep  P Berry
	Appendix 14 - Rep  S Abbott
	Appendix 15 - Rep from S Burrows
	Appendix 16 - Schedule of proposed conditions
	EXEMPT - Combined document




